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STA- OF afE FACTS 

Before t r i a l ,  evidence was presented on belmlf of appellant i n  

a motion to  suppress statemnts made by appellant to f e l l m  i m t e ,  Richard 

Miller, a.  k . a. kntgornery. ('Ihroughout this brief, this witness w i l l  be re- 

ferred to as Richard Niller or as indicated,supra.) The anly witness to tes- 

t i fy  a t  this hearing was Captain Richard Penna. He testified that Richard 

Miller was in the next cel l  to appellant (R 1124) . He mt with Richard Miller, 

wkmo told the j a i l  personnel of an escape attenpt being planned by appellant 

(R 1124-1125) . Later on, Richard Miller told j a i l  officials about statements 

made by appellant regarding the case a t  bar (R 1126-1127). The f i r s t  meeting 

was a t  the request of Richard Miller, and the j a i l  officials had not known that 

this inmate had been an informant on prior occasions (R 1127) . No mney or 

other goods were given Richard Miller in  exchange for his information (R 1128). 

a The inmate was not given any instructions and was not specifically encouraged 

to  continue obtaining information fvam appellant (R 1129). 

Ann Cole was the f i r s t  witness to testify for the state  a t  the 

trial. She lived across the street  Sramwhere the murder occurred a t  the 

orange grove. The orange grove was very large, and although she heard som 

arguing, she could not see the participants because they were far  back in the 

grcwe. The events occurred about 9 : 30 or 10: 00 p .m. Ms. Cole's house was 

quite a distance back f r o m  the road (R 619-624) . 

D r .  Haggert, the mdical examiner testifying for the state,  told 

the jury that there were multiple gunshot wounds on the victim's body; one in 

the head and one i n  the chest (R 679). The shot i n  the chest entered from the 

back and was consistent with the muzzel of a gun being held very close (R 680). 

There was a gunshot wound to the ri&t side of the head as well, and either 

a gunshot would by i tself  would have been sufficient to k i l l  the victim (R 682- 



686) . 

a Deputy Stephen Jones was dispatched to the orange p v e  la te  i n  

the mrning on Septenber 6, 1982, where a witness had discovered the victim's 

body in the orange grove and s m n e d  the police. ?he body had a blanket 

covering the victim's face (R 629-630) . 
b b e r t  Taylor, a friend and cohort of the appellant,testified for 

the s ta te .  He told the jury he was presently i n  prison for a mder i n  

Mississippi and had four (4) felony convictions (R 740). He mt appellant i n  

1982 and associated with him an a daily basis (R 741). He also knew Stacy 

Sigler (appellant's former girlfriend) and Ray Ryan, another associate of both 

appellant and Taylor (R 742). He tes t i f ied that he saw appellant cleaning out 

the trunk of h i s  car shortly af ter  the murder occurred (R 744). He noticed 

items of jewelry that appellant was wearing that he had not seen before and 

that  had been identified as the victim's jewelry by other witnesses (R 745). 

He also pulled out an orange backpack from his  tnnk (R 746). ['his backpack 

had been placed i n  the  car by another witness, who tes t i f ied on behalf of the 

s t a t e  (R 790) . ]  Taylor also told the jury that appellant adnitted to  the 

shooting i n  the orange grove of the victim. He told Taylor he drove the car 

away and l e f t  it one (1) mile fram his apartmnt and that h i s  girlfriend, Stacy 

Sigler, picked him up (R 747) . He also admitted that he shot the victim with 

a .25 automatic f i r e m .  Taylor said that he and appellant disassenbled the 

gun. It was  a Raven firearm, ~ i c h  appellant said he used i n  the shooting of 

the victim (R 748). Taylor achiitted buying one (1) of the stolen jewelry pieces 

from appellant (R 748-749). 'he gun was  disposed of i n  a junkyard (R 751-752). 

Taylor told the jury that no deals or  p r d s e s  were mde for him to tes t i fy  i n  

the case at bar but that he was facing a rmrrder charge i n  Georgia (R 752-753). 

He also tes t i f ied that he did talk to Detective Hanson about the rmrrder before 

@ the Georgia murder charges were f i led  (R 753-754). He did not h m  of, nor ever 



heard of inmate Richard Miller, a .  k. a. W n t g m r y  (R 754) . • Ray Ryan was  another cohort of the appellant who tes t i f i ed  on be- 

half of the s ta te .  As a friend of appellant's, he saw him on a regular basis 

before and during the time of the murder (R 805-806). He was also a friend of 

Robert Taylor' s (R 806) . He knew Stacy Sigler (R 807) . He noted the jewelry 

that appellant was wearing r ight  a f t e r  the murder and explained that he had 

not seen th is  jewelry on the appellant before the mder (R 807-808). He told 

the jury that appellant admitted to him that the jewelry "cost sorrebociy a l i f e . "  

Appellant adnitted to  Ryan that the victim was a hornsexual. Appellant adnitted 

that he shot and stabbed the victim and used a .25 Raven Amr; gun (R 809-810). 

Ryan described the gun (R 810) . He to16 Ryan, "anybody here' s my voice o r  sees 

my face has got t o  die." (R 809). He heard Robert Taylor tell  appellant to  

dismantle the barrel  of the fireann used i n  the rmrder (R 810). Ryan achnitted 

a that  he had been convicted of four (4) to  six (6) felonies (R 810). He also 

admitted t o  making deals t o  t es t i fy  for  the state in retum for the s t a t e  drop- 

ping a n ~ d  robbery charges (R 811-813). 

Stacy Sigler t e s t i f i ed  that she was the girlfriend of appellant 

(R 875). She saw him every day near the time of the mrder  . She knew Robert 

Taylor and Raymnd Ryan as w e l l  (R 877) . She tes t i f i ed  she was driving through 

Eola Park i n  O r l d  a t  7:00 p.m. w i t h  the appellant i n  early September, h e n  

the appellant said he wanted to  find a homosexual and k i l l  him (R 879-880). 

He told her to drive hin: to  a bar near Lab Eola Park and w a i t  for  him to  call 

her (R 881). ?he appellant did indeed ca l l  the witness at h i s  brother's house 

about th i r ty  (30) minutes t o  one (1) hour l a t e r  (R 881-882) . The witness saw 

the appellant with a car tmmk open. She saw the appellant taking things out 

of the car. She did not reco@ze the car as one owned o r  used by appellant on 

a regular basis (R 882). She did recal l  an orange backpack by th is  car (R 884). 



She folluwed appellant to another orange grove, where appellant dropped th is  

• car off (R 885) . She noted the jewelry worn by appellant for  the f i r s t  tim 

that she had not noticed before (R 885). Appellant told her that he had ki l led  

the victim and l e f t  him in sn orange grove (K 886). She described so= of the 

j emlry for the jury (R 887) . She admitted to  lying to the police before, by 

stating that appellant had nothing to  cb with the murder but she had contacted 

her attorney and decided to t e l l  the truth (R 890). She adnitted that she was  

getting irmnmity in the case at bar in exchange for  her testimny (R 891). 

Richard Yiller,  a.k. a. I v b n t ~ r y ,  was  the cellmate of appellant's 

who was  haused i n  the Orange County J a i l ,  right next to where appellant was 

incarcerated (R 1258). He approached the jail personnel with infoxmation ob- 

tained from appellant bile they were incarcerated (R 1259). The witness admit- 

ted that he was to have arrned robbery charges dropped by the s ta te  i n  exchange 

a for  h is  testinmy (R 1259-1260). 'Ihe witness tes t i f ied  that appellant wanted 

him to c a l l  the news to get pre t r ia l  publicity so that appellant could get a 

change of venue and have a bet ter  chance to escape (R 1262-1263). Appellant 

told the witness that an associate had dropped him off at a store, that appellant 

mt a person drinking beer, and he asked th is  person to give him a ride. 

Appellant was  able to get th is  person to  an orange grove and demanded three (3) 

gold bullions from th is  person and shot the victim (R 1264, 1266). Later the 

witness t es t i f i ed  appellant gave h immre  specifics. Appellant stated that 

Stacy Sigler drove him to the place where he met the victim and that appellant 

drove the victim's car from one orange grove to another. Stacy Sigler picked 

up the appellant a f te r  the murder had occurred at th is  orange grove (R 1267). 

Appellant also achitted that the murder weapon was a .25 caliber automatic 

(R 1267) . Appellant a w t t e d  obtaining jewelry fronl the victim (R 1268) . The 

witness also disclosed a plot to k i l l  Stacy Sigler, hi& appellant in i t ia ted  

and hired the witness to acconplish (R 1272). The witness was offered f ive  



thousand ($5,000.00) dollars and obtained a picture of Stacy ~ i g l e r  h i c h  was 

admitted into evidence (R 1273-1274) . Another note with Stacy Sigler ' s address 

was admitted into evidence because the witness tes t i f ied that this  note was 

intended for  the hired k i l l e r s  of Stacy Sigler h e n  the witness was able to 

hi re  these k i l l e r s  (R 1277-1278) . Thereafter, the witness contacted the jail 

authorities regarding the escape plan and gave them details la te r  on on his  own 

in i t ia t ive  of the facts  achitted by appellant in the case a t  bar (R 1280-1281). 



POINT I 

The search warrant was  sufficient because it can be pres-d that 

when the appellant was observed with the stolen jewelry that the jewelry would 

be either on the person of appellant or  a t  his residence. The affidavit in 

the case a t  bar also is not deficient because of the time elemnt, because 

the affidavit alleges that the c r h  occurred on S e p t d e r  6, 1982, and the 

affidavit was  dated October 11, 1982. Therefore, the warrant was  not "stale . I 1  

F'urthemre, the warrant alleges a continuing violation. 

F'urthemre, since the effective date of the amended Florida 

constitutional a r t i c le  was  applicable a t  the time of t r i a l ,  the holding of 

United States v. Leon, 468 U. S. , 104 S.Ct. - , 82 L.Ed. 2d 677 (1984) would 

apply 

POINT I1 

The inmate was not obtaining infom-ation about the mrder charge 

a t  the behest of g o v e m t  officials .  Nor was  the innate a paid i n f o m t  and 

specifically was not getting any rermrneration for h is  senrices in the case a t  

b .  The jail officials  did not encourage the i m t e  to obtain information 

about the case from appellant in violation of United States v. Henry, 447 U.S. 

264, 100 S.Ct.  2183, 65 L.Ed. 2d 115 (1980). 

POINT 111 

Appellant was not enti t led to  a rristrial based upon ccnrments from 

the witnesses and prosecutor. The evidence of the escape plot was relevent, 

even though it was not arlnitted a t  trial because it defined the relationsnip 

between appellant and the innate. The opening remark was not error becuase it 

did not constitute evidence, the prosecutor made it in good fa i th ,  and the evi- 

dence that the prosecutor tormented on should have been arlnitted. A l l  other 



camnents by witnesses or  the prosecutor could have been cured with a curative 

instruction and to the extent that these c o m n t s  were  not objected t o  by the 

defense, the appellant has fai led to preserve those issues for  review. 

porn IV 

The particular facts  of a murder charge regarding a prosecution 

witness, Robert Taylor, were not relevant to the impeachmnt. Appellant i s ,  

and was  a l l m d  to  delve into the k s t e n c e  of the pending murder charge but the 

trial court was  correct in excluding any examination into the facts  because 

appellant damnstrated no relevancy or  issues of credibi l i ty between the facts  

of the murder in  Georgia and the impeachmnt i n  the case a t  bar. 

p o r n  v 
Tne prosecution should have been allowed to  admit a prior consistent 

s t a t e n t  t o  rebut an implied charge of recent fabrication. Appellee submits 

the grounds urged on appeal were not the s a m  p u n &  argued below, and as 

such, the point should f a i l  for  this reason alone. Fur themre,  the cross- 

exanination of the witness clearly implied that the witness was making recent 

fabrications; thus the prior consistent statement was ackissable, pursuant to  

section 90.801 (2) (b) , Florida Statutes (1983) . 

p o r n  VL 

Tne prosecutor's camnents in closing ar-nt were invited by 

appellant ' s defense counsel ' s prior closing ar-nt . Additionally, the 

prosecutor's c m n t  was f a i r  argumnt based upon the evidence presented a t  

t r i a l .  In any event, the argmmt cannot be construed as one that was mani- 

fes t ly  intended t o  camnent on the appellant's r ight  t o  remain s i lent .  

POINT VLI 

Appellant, by his action, deliberately waived h i s  presence from 

any ilearings. Appellant's personal appearance at the hearings were not man- 

@ dated under the Florida Wes of Criminal Procedure. 



POINT VIII 

The court did not abuse its discretion i n  refusing to grant a 

secondmtion to continue, h e r e  the appellant could show no specific prejudice. 

?he trial i t s e l f ,  does not disclose that the defense was disabled or hampered 

because of the denial of a second motion for continuance. The fact  that a 

witness took the Fifth Amendment during a deposition, is  not p u n &  to grant 

a continuance, but i n  any event, this  witness (Robert Taylor) did disclose 

much of his criminal history and was substantially impeached. 

POINT LX 

?he statemnt of Stacy Sigler was taken voluntarily by the s ta te  

attorney. Florida M e  of Cr-1 Procedure 3.220 (b) (3) was not designed to 

effect the remedy that appellant requires. 

POINT X 

The record does not disclose thatthe jury saw the leg shackles 

on appellant. The s ta te  had a canpelling reason to  shackle appellant, who 

had bm (2) capital murder convictions in Mississippi and was  on death row 

i n  Mississippi. The error, i f  any, m d d  be hamless under the circmstances . 
POINT XI 

In light of the very tenuous nature b e w e n  the phone call and the 

jurror, and i n  li&t of the t r i a l  court's instructions to the jury, the t r i a l  

court had the discretion to deny the mt ion  for mistrial where a jurror reported 

that her husband received an amnyn-ous phane ca l l ,  in vhich the caller  did not 

identify himself (or herself) during the t r i a l .  

POINT XI1 

?he trial court had the discretion to deny the special jury in- 

struction, which i n  effect would t e l l  the jury to disregard the evidence and 

to  r e m d  a l i f e  sentence a t  their  whim. In l ight  of a l l  the other ins truc- 

tions given, the jury was adequately instructed. 



POINT XI11  

a During the penalty phase, the trial court properly permitted details 

of a prior capital felony t o  be presented. Any analogy between similar fact  

evidence, and admission of this  type of evidence a t  the penalty phase would be 

inapposite because section 921.141 (1) , Florida Statutes (1983) , allows any 

evidence the court d e w  relevant to the character of the defendant i n  the 

penalty phase. 

p o r n  XIV 

Aggravating circms tances , pursuant t o  section 921.141 (6) , Florida 

Statutes (1983) , are not substantive elements and should not be alleged i n  the 

indictment. %e statutory scheme is S& that the aggravating factors are part 

of a punishnxmt scheme; not e l m t s  of a c r i m .  I f  the aggravating factors 

were alleged in the indictment, the s ta te  d d  be required to prove those ele- 

ments a t  trial. 

Appellant was properly sentenced to death. A witness tes t i f ied 

that appellant told him subsequent to the murder, "anybody here ' s my voice or  

sees my face has got to die." %ere was also t e s t k n y  that appellant l e f t  

the body i n  an orange grove and took the victim's autambile three (3) miles 

away to  another orange grove. Along with the other evidence, there was sub- 

s tant ia l ,  campetent evidence to find that the murder was corm7itted for  avoiding 

or preventing a lawful  arrest .  

Witnesses tes t i f ied to the planning and the m u n t  of time that 

appellant had prior to  comnitting the crine. In addition, the medical examiner 

tes t i f ied that the victim was shot i n  the head and i n  the back, either shot 

being fa ta l .  As such, the trial court had the discretion to  find that the 

murder was camnitted i n  a cold, calculated, and p rmdi t a t ed  mariner. 

a 



POINT XVI 

Tne Florida capital sentencing statute is constitutional and the 

points that appellant urges to  over- that conclusim have been rejected. 



ARGUMENT 

POINT I 

THE: TRIAL COURT -UIl THE DISCRETION 
TO DENY A P P r n T ' S  mIoN TO SUP- 
PRESS PHYSICAL hVIDENCE BECAUSE ?HE 
AFFIWVIT SUPPORTING THE SEARCH W- 
FATST HAD SLllTICIE51T PROBABLE CAUSE. 

The affidavit which appellant attacks indicates that the vic- 

tim was found in an orange grove on Septenber 6, 1982. An autopsy was per- 

fom-ed on S e p t d e r  7,  1982 a t  h i c h  time it was determined that a .25 caliber 

projectile was  used to k i l l  the victim. This bullet  was from an automatic 

or  sari-autcmatic firearm with the brand mm of Raven Arms. 

In the affidavit, one W n d  Ryan gave the specific address 

of where the appellant lived. He swore that appellant told him he kil led 

the victim for the gold jewelry the victimwas wearing anel observed this  same 

jewelry i n  the possession of the appellant. Raymmd Ryan also swore that he 

saw one RDbert Taylor in possession of a .25 caliber automatic firearm - 

Raven lams make. Ryan's affidavit also disclosed the specific address of 

Robert Taylor, which was only one (1) apartmnt n d e r  from k e r e  appellant 

lived. Additionally, Ryan stated b b e r t  Taylor was i n  possession of one (1) 

piece of the stolen jewelry. The affidavit also stated that Taylor and ap- 

pellant were close friends and f r e q ~ n t l y  visited each other's apartnmt ana 

had ccmmitted other crimes together. Ryan saw Taylor with this  jewelry 

within ten (10) days frm the date of the affidavit which was October 11, 

1982 (R 2818-2828). 

Appellant c la im the affidavit is  deficient because it does 

not say that Ryan saw the appellant with the jewelry in h is  haw. In 

a Bastida v. 'Xenderson, 487 F. 2d 860 5th C i r  . (1973) , a search warrant affida- 



vit was upheld  ere the affiant saw the defendant with guns used in a 

robbery on the day  of the offense. Even though the affadavit did not say 

the gms were seen a t  the horn of the defendant, the review court held that 

the gms would either be on the defendant's person or a t  his hone It 

was not d i t r a r y  for the mgistrate to make that determination. In State 

v. Malone, 288 So. 2d 549 (Fla. 1st DCA 19 74) , a search warrant was upheld 

even though the supporting affidavit made no specific allegation that the 

stolen watch was  a t  the defendant's house. What makes this case even stronger 

than the la t te r  two (2) cases, are the facts that Ryan alleged that the 

co-defendant, Taylor and the appellant were close friends and frequently 

visited each other's apartrrrent and had carnrritted other crimes together. 

?his information certainly would give probable cause to the fact that the 

items would likely be in appellant's apartment. 

a Next, appellant claims the warrant must f a i l  because the affiant 

did not say when he saw appellant in  possession of the jewelry. Appellant' s 

reliance upon King v. State, 410 So.2d 586 (Fla. 2d DCA 1982), i s  misplaced 

because the confidential informant in ttlat case never said when he saw the 

defendant possess the marijuana. In King, the affidavit was deficient be- 

cause the confidential informant could have seen the offense years ago; the 

magistrate could not make a determination from the information in the af- 

fidavit as to any time limitation. In the case a t  bar, the affidavit dis- 

closes that the crime occurred on Septen-ber 6, 1982 (or a t  least it was 

discovered) and an autopsy was perforrrred on Septen-ber 7, 1982. ?he affidavit 

was dated October 11, 1982. b r e f o r e ,  it would be impossible for the police 

to get the infomation from Raymond Ryan prior to Septenher 7 ,  1982. Ryan 

alleged he had seen Taylor i n  possession of the murder weapon within the past 

ten (10) days. Presumably he codd  have seen appellant in possession of 



a the stolen jewelry as early as Se7terrber 6, 1982. But inasnucl-1 as the af- 

f idavit  details that the victim was al ive on Septenber 5, 1982 ( i .  e .  , the 

allegation of Mark Kite), Raymnd Ryan would have had to have given this  

infonmtion pursuant to the affidavit between September 6, 1982, and October 

11, 1982. nis tim period does not make the warrant "stale. " 

In Hess v. State, 309 So. 2d 606 (ma. 2d DCA 1975) , the court 

distinguished an affidavit pertaining to a stolen television se t  and a 

warrant h i c h  sought fungible goods such as drugs. In W t e d  States 

v. Barfield, 507 F.2d 53, 58 5th C i r .  (1977), ce r t .  denied, 421 U.S. 950, 

95 S . C t  . 1684, 44 L. Ed. 2d at 105 (1975) , it was held that a forty (40) day 

interval between the affiant saying the stolen property was seen on the 

defendant's premises and the execution of the search warrant would not be 

unreasonable. 

a Appellee shmits that the affidavit uses the present tense and 

alleges a continuing violation and as such a specific date would not be 

necessary. - See, Borras v.  State, 229 So. 2d 244 (ma. 1969) . The Fifth 

C i r c u i t  is  Bastida, supra, explained that a protracted offense is m r e  likely 

to sustain a longer period of time than an isolated case. The Fifth Circuit 

q l a i n e d  that although the possession of the gun i n  a robbery was not a 

11 continuing offense as such, the weapon would remain as a continuing" a r t i c le  

unlike i l l ega l  alcohol. Appellee submits the affidavit alleges a continuing 

offense, i . e . , possession of stolen property, and as such the warrant should 

be *held on this  graund alone. 

The cases appellant ci tes to support h is  contention deal with 

the veracity of the informant and not the issue of "staleness." 

Appellant argues that the holding of United States v. Leon, 

• 468 U.S. 104 S . C ~ .  , 82 L. Ed. 26 677 (1984) , cannot be applied to  



the case a t  bar, because the crime occurred before ar t ic le  I ,  section X I 1  

of the Florida Constitution was amended. Appellant ci tes State v. Lavazzoli, 

434 So. 2d 321 (Fla . 1983) , and State v.  Williams, 443 So. 2d 952 (Fla. 1983) , 

to  support this contention. In these cases, not only did the offense occur 

before this  Florida constitutional provision becam effective, but the trials 

themselves were conducted prior to the effective date. - See, State v. Willaims, 

443 a t  954. 

In Callmay v. Wainmi&., 409 F. 26 59, 62 (Fla . 1969) , cert  . 
denied 89 S.Ct. 752, a defendant challenged a Florida s ta te  conviction 

by way of habeaus corpus. It was held that retro application of Mkanda 

was limited to  trials which were begun a f te r  their  respective dates. The 

decision also indicated that this point had been raised on direct appeal to 

the Florida Suprerre Court. This decision was similar to  the action taken 

by the Lhited States Suprem Court i n  Johnson v. New Jersey, 384 U. S. 719, 

86 S.Ct. 1772, L.Ed. 2d (1966) . There, the S u p r a  Coust held that 

the rules of Kranda were available only to persons whose trials began after  

the dates of the decisions and should not affect cases s t i l l  on direct appeal 

when they were decided. This court recognized i n  State v. Statewright, 300 

So. 2d 674, 677 (Fla. 1974 ) , that Mimnda was not retroactive but since the 

trial began af ter  the date of Ydranda, the Miranda rule would apply. 

Certainly, i f  Miranda rights could not be applied retroactively 

for the benefit of a defendant (at least  dlere the rights were not the law 

at the t h  of the t r i a l ) ,  then i n  the case at bar, the contested Fourth 

Lmenchent rights should be the law a t  the time of the trial. Dufour went to 

trial in May of 1984. Tne effective date of the amnded Florida constitutional 

a r t i c le  was  January 4, 1983. Therefore, this a r t i c le  was i n  effect at the 

t h  of the appellant's t r i a l .  Although h i t e d  States v. Leon, supra, was  



e p r d g a t e d  i n  July of 1984, appellee submits that the law at the time of 

the appeal must decide the case. - See, e .g . ,  Joins v. State, 287 So.2d 742 

(Fla. 2d DCA. 1974). -- See also, Mills v. State, 10 F.L.W. 45, 46 (Fla., Jan- 

10, 1985),here it was held that a statute increasing the time that a t r i a l  

court could re ta in  jurisdiction over a defendant' s sentence cotild be applied 

h e r e  the statute was i n  effect  at the time of sentencing but not at the 

date of the rxxrmission of the crime. 



POINT I1 

THE TRIAZ, COURT, BASED UPON THE 
EVIDENCE, DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRE- 
TION I N  FINDING THAT AN INMATE, ONE 
RICHARD MOW-Y, WAS NOT A GOVEIW- 
MENT INFORMAKC FOR PURPOSES OF SOLICIT- 
ING 'INFOHMATION l ? E G m I N G  THE MURDER 
CHARGE I N  THE CASE AT BAR. 

Appellant argues that the t r i a l  court was i n  error  i n  not ex- 

cluding the testimcxzy of an inmate, one Richard Montgmery , who tes t i f i ed  

on behalf of the s t a t e  regarding admissions which he heard from appellant 

while the t m  were housed together i n  the Orange County Jail. Appellant 

asserts  that the evidence heard by the t r i a l  court i n  the motion and a t  the 

t r i a l  was analagous t o  the fac ts  i n  United States v. Henry, 447 U. S. 264, 

100 S. C t  . 2183, 65 L.Ed. 2d 115 (1980). 

a A t  the p re t r i a l  motion t o  suppress the statements made by appel- 

lan t  t o  this inmate, Captain John Penn of the Orange County Sheriff ' s Off ice  

t e s t i f i ed  (R. 1122-1123). Captain Penn told the court that  Richard Mmtganery 

was indeed housed i n  the c e l l  next t o  appellant. H e  met with Montgmery be- 

cause Montgmery wanted to  disclose an escape attempt which involved appel- 

lan t  (R. 1124-1125). The f i r s t  meeting was a t  the request of Richard Mont- 

gamery. Captain Penn did not how that  Montgomery had been a govemment 

informer prior  t o  meeting with him (R. 1127). Montgmery was granted some 
1 

trivial requests, but when Mmtganery asked f o r  mmey , the relationship was 

halted and the jai l  o f f i c i a l s  contacted the s t a t e  attorney (R. 1128). 

Montgomery, regarding the present murder case, was given no instructions, and 

1 
During the t r i a l ,  Muntganery explained that one of the requests granted was 

t o  allow him t o  ~ l a v  h i s  e l ec t r i c  &tar. He m l a i n e d  that th is  was not  so 
much of a privilLg&but was done & l i e u  of graniing him recreation time out- 
side (R. 1307-1308). 



was not encouraged nor discouraged to  so l i c i t  any information frorn appellant. - 
0 The j a i l  officials  were primarily interested in the escape (R. 1129). 

In k i t e d  States v. Van Scoy, 654 F.2d 257 (3d C i r .  1981), cert.  

denied, 454 U.S. 1126, 102 S.Ct. 977, 71 L.Ed. 2d 114 (1981), a prisoner ob- 

tained achissions against a defendant while both were incarcerated. Al -  

though the defendant claimed the prisoner was acting as a government informant, 

the Third Circuit noted that this  prisoner served as an informant for  a dif- 

ferent prison murder, not the murder mder review. The inmate was given no 

instructions, nor m e y  for his infonnation. The court held that although 

the inmate was willing t o  furnish certain informatian to the government, 

without any ins tructicms from the govemment, he could not be deemed a govern- 

ment agent. The Third Circuit noted that Henry, supra, was acting under 

government instructions, and was paid on a contingent fee basis. In the 

case a t  bar ,  the evidence certainly can be interpreted to show that these 

t m  (2) l a t t e r  conditions did not exist .  Thanas v. Cox, 708 F.2d, 132 4th 

C i r .  (1983), likewise, made these same distinctions in rejecting the same 

claim that  appellant seeks herein. The Fourth Circuit noted that in Henry, 

supra, the prisoner was contacted by the govemment, but in the case a t  bar, 

Mmtgamery contacted the j a i l  officials .  The Fourth C i r c u i t  also distinguiskd 

Henry, because there was a prearranged m t i n g e n t  fee basis, but in Thanas, 

the inmates ac t ims  were self-initiated, and not under government direction. 

The fact  that the inmate hoped to obtain a future benefit, muld not make 

hi- a govemment agent. Likewise, in the case a t  bar, although the inmate 

could be impeached for  "currying favor" with the government, such actions by 

him do not convert him into a government agent. See also, Wited States y. -- 
Franklin, 704 F. 2d 1183, 1189-1190 (10th Cir. 1983), where a wiretap "in- - formant" was held not to  be a Henry agent when she was not paid nor 



instructed by the government. 

This court has likewise rejected similar claims under the Henry, 

supra, case. In Bottbson v. State, 443 So. 2d 962, 965 (Fla. 1983), an in- 

mate gave information of a defendant's achissions to the state attorney. 

The state attorney told the inmate not to question the suspect any mre ,  

but the inmate did, and that testimony was held achissible. In the case a t  

bar, although the inmate was told not to i l l i c i t  information, he was like- 

wise not encouraged to get information, nor given any payment, nor instruc- 

tions thereto. 

In Miller v. State, 415 So.2d 1262, 1263 (Fla. 1982), this court 

rejected a claim that because an inmate acts as a government agent in me  

capacity, he i s  for a l l  purposes a government agent. So, even though the in- 

mate was an informant for the govemment regarding a drug case, his testimony 

regarding achissions pursuant to a murder case would not place him the status 

of a government informant. The t r i a l  court, in the case a t  bar, found that 

the information sought by the corrections officers was to uncover an escape 

plot; not to  gather information regarding the murder charge (R. 1251-53) . 
In Van Scoy, supra, the Third C i r c u i t  declared that the standard 

of review for this type of a motion was the "clearly erroneous" standard. 

Given the testimony a t  the motion to suppress, as well as the t r i a l  testi-  

m y ,  it certainly cannot be argued that the t r i a l  court was clearly erron- 

eous in denying the motion. Appellant i s  only re-arguing what was argued 

below, but this court cannot substitute i t s  judpent for the t r i a l  court's. 



POINT 111 

THE TlUAL COURT HAD THE DISCRETION 
TO DEhY THE KYIIONS FOR MSTRIAL 
FMERE THERE WAS NO ABSOLUTE LEGAL 
NECESSITY TO GRANT SUCH MUTIONS AND 
ANYALLEGF,DERRORSwEREORCOmBE 
CURED BY A CURATIVE INSTRUCTION OR 
WOULD BE HARMLESS E m R  OR BOTH. 

Appellant's f i r s t  contention deals with the prosecutor's de- 

tai l ing of an escape plot during opening argment (R 609). Appellant con- 

tends a notion for mistrial should have been granted. Richard mntgornery, 

the irnrate and appellant became acquainted as felluw inmates and, according 

to mntgomery , becaw involved i n  an escape plan on behalf of appellant 

(*re Pbntgarnery be- an informant regarding the plan) . Appellee submits 

under Yesbick v. State, 408 So. 2d 1083, 1085 (Fla. 1982) , this evidence 

should have been achissible. In Yesbick, the defendant camplained that evi- 

denceofapreviousdrugtsansact ionwithas ta te ' swi tnessfor~chhewas  

not on trial, violated the holding in W i l l i a m  v. State, 110 So. 2d 654 (Fla. 

1959). %is court rejected that ar-nt holding that evidence which had a 

tendency to  establish the crime charged, is  admissible, even though it could 

point t o  another c r i m  c d t t e d .  %e evidence of the other drug transaction 

in  Yesbick was relevent because it explained the continuing relationship with 

the s ta te ' s  witness and the defendant. Likewise, in the case a t  bar, the 

evidence regarding the escape defines the relationship between appellant 

and inmate, b n t g e r y .  Appellee submits that f l ight  is  a relevant issue 

in this case, and would be another reason to allow this evidence. See, 

Coney v. State, 348 So. 2d 672 (Fla. 3d DCA 1977) , where evidence by a s ta te  ' s 

witness that the defendant asked to  leave tam with this witness subsequent 

to the c r h ,  was held achissible. 



opening remarks do not constitute evidence. See, Witted v. 

a State, 362 SO. 2d 668, 678 (Fla. 1978). In k i t e d  States V. Cappo, 595 F. 2d 

1086, 1094, n.  8, (5th C i r .  1479) , cert .  denied, 444 U.S. 1012, 100 S.Ct. 

660, 62 L.Ed. 2d 641, where the prosecutor made opening remarks regarding 

Williams rule of evidence, which he in good fa i th  believed was achnissible, 

it was held that no error occurred even though this evidence was subsequently 

ruled inachnissible. This court in Rutledge v. State, 374 So. 2d 975, 979 

(Fla. 1979), made a similar holding. A tape recording was mentimed by the 

prosecutor i n  his opening argmat. The tape was subsequently ruled in- 

achnissible, although the judge a t  the time of the opening argument had de- 

ferred ruling. This court noted that the s ta te  attorney qualified his 

opening remarks by indicating that  nothing he said would be evidence. Again, 

no error was fomd. The case a t  bar is similar. A t  the time of the opening 

argunent, the evidence was ruled actnissible. In addit im, just  before the • s ta te  camnenced i t s  opening remarks, the court explained to the jury that 

opening statements were not evidence, and that  the jury was only to rely on 

the testimxly fran the stand and the physical evidence (R. 592-93) . The court 

explained that the defense could also take advantage of th is  opening remark 

in its closing, by pointing out that no evidence was adduced regarding the 

escape plan. In De La avta v. State, 355 So. 2d 1227 (Fla. 3d DCA 1978), a 

mistrial mtim was denied and affirmed m appeal because the s ta te  did not 

obey any rule of procedure or fmdamental fairness. The present case is in 

the same posture, and as such, the drastic measure of a mistrial was properly 

not invoked. 

Next, appellant notes the following in the transcript: 

Q. (By the prosecutor) . . . 
Did he t e l l  you any of the facts ,  or iust  
what the chakge wis? 
(emphasis supplie d) 



A. Just what he was in  there for murders, 
and he run four (4) or five (5) other guys 
out of the cel l ,  so I was apprehensive. 

. Dvorak (the def ense attorney) : 
Your Honor, I ' m  going to object t o  that 
and mve for  a mistrial.  That l a s t  cam- 
ment by the weight. 

The court: The objection w i l l  be sustained. 
The motion w i l l  be h i e d .  Members of the 
jury, the l a s t  comnent about four (4) o r  
five (5) other guys out of there is to be 
disregarded by you in the consideration of 
this case. 

(R. 1261-62). No other objections to t h a t  comnent were interposed. The 

s ta te  then requested the witness to confine his answers to the questions. 

The s t a t e  then asked the following question: 

Q. . . .After he told you t h a t  he was charged 
with murders, did he t e l l ,  a t  t h a t  time, did 
he t e l l  you any of the facts  of the case or 
the charge against him? 

A. No, Sir .  

(R. 1262). No objectim was interposed to  th is  question a t  a l l .  The trans- 

cr ipt  reveals t h a t  the defense counsel nwer  objected to  the reference of 

' b d e r s " ,  but only to  the camnent regarding to  the appellant nmning "four 

(4) or f ive (5) other guys out of t ha t  ce l l .  " In Ferguson v. State, 417 So. 

2d 639 (Fla. 1982), this court held tha t  a motion for  mistrial must be made 

wen i f  the comnent is  objectionable on obvious grounds, or  else the objection 

would not be preserved pursuant to  Castor v. State, 365 So. 2d 701 (Fla. 1978) . 

See also, State v. Prieto, 439 So. 2d 288 (Fla. 3d DCA 1983) , h i c h  had the -- 

same holding. In Wilson v. State, 436 So.2d 908, 910-11 (Fla. 1983), a w i t -  

ness was asked by the s t a t e  what charges the defendant was arrested for  in 

connection with the case. The defendant objected and moved for  a mistrial 

because the answer would have included charges not the subject of the 



present information. The court affinned the conviction and noted that the 

record d idnot  disclose that the s ta te  attorney intentionally t r ied to  show 

the jury that the defendant was arrested for other crimes. Likewise, in 

this case, the i n i t i a l  question of the s ta te  attorney did not i l l i c i t  informa- 

tion to show that the defendant was arrested for other crimes. The answer 

was nonresponsive. Although a subsequent question by the s ta te  contains the 

statement, "After he told you that he was charged with ~mzrders," this  question 

merely repeats what was stated by the witness before, to  which no objection 

was interposed. 

In W i l l i a m s  v. State, 354 So. 2d 112 (Fla. 3d DCA 1978) , it was 

held that an inadvertent statement of a witness would not be sufficient grounds 

for a mistrial,  but that a curative instruction would be sufficient. The 

witness in Williams, stated the defendant had been in prison before, clearly 

implying that the defendant had been convicted of other crimes. -- See also, 

Warren v. State, 443 So.2d 381 (Fla. 1st DCA 1983), for  the same facts and 

holding as in Williams, supra, and De La Cova , supra. 

Finally, in regarding these camnents, it has been held that 

reference in the t e s t b y  of a s ta te ' s  witness to other charges was harmless 

error, in view of a curative instruction and no error occurred when the 

t r i a l  court refused to grant a mistrial mtion.  See, Riley v. State, 367 

So. 2d 1091 (Fla. 3d DCA 1979), and Flowers v. State, 351 So. 2d 764 (Fla. 3d 

DCA 1977). In view of the lack of objection (and ips0 facto, the lack of 

a request for a curative instruction), these comeents certainly should be 

deemed harmless error. 

The prosecutor asked Montganery what kind of a person did 

appellant a h i t  ki l l ing,  to  which the witness replied that it had come from 

a "the single homicide. " (R. 1268) . Again, a mistrial should not have been 



granted (even though there was arl objection), because the answer was not 

solicited by the prosecutor. See, Wilson, supra, and De Lamva, supra. A 

curative instruction would have been sufficient. In Pbrales v. State, 431 

So.2d 648 (Fla. 3d DCA 1983), a victim testifying for the state of direct, 

made a rider of i d a m a t o r y  and prejudicial remarks. It was held not an 

abusive discretion to deny a mtion for mistrial where a proper curative in- 

struction was given. -- See also, United States v. Bain, 736 F. 2d 1430, 1488- 

1485 (11th C i r .  1984), which had the same holding regarding a state 's  witness 

mntioning collateral marijuana charges in  violation of a previous order 

in  linine;, but where a curative instruction was d e a d  sufficient in  l ieu of - 

a mistrial. In the case a t  bar, appellant was offered a curative instruction, 

but specifically waived that (R 1269). Although a witness has mentioned 

other crimes for which the defendant i s  not on t r i a l ,  or mntions that the 

defendant has been in  custody, which would i q l y  he has c d t t e d  a collateral 

c r h ,  these references are generally incurred by a curative instruction, and 

it i s  not error to deny a mistrial mtion. See, Riley, supra, and Dunn v. - 
State, 341 So.2d 806 (Fla. 3d DCA 1977). 'Ihe court, in denying the mtion 

in the case a t  bar, noted not only that the question was not responsive to 

the answer, but comnented, "There i s  no reference to mything i n  this case 

up to  this point. " (R 1269) . Indeed, this answer would appear very unclear 

to  a jury, and would not necessarily imply that appellant had been convicted, 

or  was charged with other m d e r s .  Taken i n  context to what the jury had 

previously heard, this answer i s  confusing a t  best . As such, to imply that 

the jury would infer that appellant had other murder convictions or charges 

from this camnent, would be speculation. 

Richard Montgamery, testifying an behalf of the state,  made 

two (2) references tlmt he was in  danger i n  staying a t  the Orange County 



Jail (R. 1308, 1316). Ncme of these c~~rments referred to appellant specifi- 

• cally. Later on in the proceedings, appellant's counsel mved for a mistrial 

based upon these corrments (R. 1320-21). Although the t r i a l  court denied the 

mticm for mistrial,  he gave the following curative instruction: 

I want to instruct you that h i s  testimmy 
ccmceming any alleged threats or fears 
that he may have, have nothing to  do with 
th is  case, or with the defendant in this 
case, and that testinmy therefore, is  
not to be ms idered  by you in connecticm 
with this case. 

(R. 1334-35). The curative instruction was adequate to  negate any putative 

error. In additicm, the instructicm included the words "alleged threats or 

fears", so that any intenticm that the t r i a l  court was 'bolstering" the w i t -  

nesses credibility would be negated by the word "alleged." Additionally, 

the s ta te  attorney noted that sane of these threats did cme f r m  the appel- 

lant and in l ight  of the extensive cross-examination mdergme by the inmate- • witness, ( i  . e. , regarding the witnesses ' mt ives  to "curry favor1' with the 

s ta te  and to obtain "deals"), such evidence would be proper to rebut the 

cross -examination (R. 1323-24) . As such, the curative ins tructicm was m r e  

than adequate to  negate any alleged error.  



POINT I V  

TEE TRIAL COURT HAD TEE DISCRETIOK 
TO LIMIT THE CROSS-lXWlNATION OF 
ROBERT TAkZOR. 

I Appellant takes issue with the t r i a l  court ' s granting a mt ion  

not allawing the defense to delve in to  the facts of a pending mder charge 

in Georgia regarding the prosecution witness, RDbert Taylor (R 2564). The 

court, in granting the mtion,  did not prohibit the defense fram impeaching 

~ the witness regarding the rmntder charge but merely prohibited the defense 

~ f r m  delving into the facts (R 1212) . Even on direct examination it was 

brought up that Mr. Taylor was  facing a pending m d e r  charge in Georgia 

(R 752-753). On re-cross-examination it was b r o w t  out that the witness 

I hoped to  have the s ta te  attorney speak up on h i s  behalf a t  the upcoming 

a Georgia rmder  t r i a l  (R 783-784) . The mt ion  - in limine was  brought up 

again by defense counsel but the s ta te  attorney and defense counsel agreed 

to the following qwstion h i c h  was  asked on cross-examination: 

Q. P k .  Taylor, you tes t i f ied that the 
Georgia murder charge had not been f i l ed  
a t  the time you f i r s t  started your co- 
operation, but i n  fact i n  the charge in 
Georgia, that murder had alreaal occurred, 
had it not, at that time? 

A. I t 's  ny understanding. 

(R 785-786) . Nothing further was proffered by the defense and no further 

objections were entertained. 

Appellant ci tes Perez v. State, 453 So. 2d 173 (Fla. 2d DCA 

1984), to support his cause. In Perez the facts of the particular charge 

were relevant to  impeach the witness because the witness allegedly made a 

knife h i l e  in prison to assault the defendant. Obviously, the facts of the 

upccsning charge were relevant to the defense i n  Perez. In the case a t  bar, 



a appellant proffers no facts t o  t i e  i n  the Georgia case with the present 
- 

case. I f  the Georgia case involved Mr. Dufour, then Perez c d d  possibly 

be applicable. But there was no such pmffer and unlikely no such connection. 
2 

Hernandez v. State, 360 So. 2d 39 (Fla. 3d CCA 1978) , involved 

i m p e a h n t  where the defense counsel maintained an assault victim had 

reason to fabricate the charges because he was pro-Castro while the defendant 

was anti-Castro. This impeachment was  rebuked because it was not relevant 

and the Third District held that  the "prospect of bias on the part of a 

pmsecution witness (does) not open the door to  every question that might 

possibly develop the subject . " - Id. at 41. -- See also, Nelson v.  State, 395 

So. 2d 176, 177- 178 (Fla. 1st DCA 1981) , where it was held that c r o s s - d n a -  

tion n u t  be shown t o  be relevant i n  attempting t o  ask a store security 

witness what the c iv i l  l i ab i l i ty  policies were for arresting a shoplifter 

a was held not t o  f i t  this cr i ter ia .  It must be remerrjbered that the defense 

, counsel could not conduct a general character attack under the guides of 

impeachn~nt regarding the facts of the Georgia murder. See, Steinhorst v. 

State, 412 So. 2d 337 (Fla. 1982) . 
The proffer was inadequate to  shuw the relevancy of the Georgia 

murder facts regardmg ~ a y l o r  ' s impeachment (R 769) . As such, appellant has 

fai led t o  show any harm t o  h i s  case for impeaching Taylor. In W t e d  States 

v. Finkelstein, 526 F. 2d 517, 529 (2d C i r  . 1975) , the court distinguished 

Davis v. Alaska, 415 U.S. 308, 94 S . C t .  1105, 39 L.Ed. 2d 347 (1974). In 

Davis, the court noted the witness's denial appeared to be of questionable 

truthfulness, but i n  Finkelstein the defendant failed to  show how the pro- 

'Appellant asserts that  Taylor should have tes t i f ied on the facts of the 
Georgia case because he would receive use arrarnslity pursuant to § 914.04, a ma. Stat.  (1983). Aside from the facts  not being relevant to  the case, 
appellee notes t h a t  th is  statute may not apply to a Georgia trial. 



fered evidence would harm his  irrgeachmnt. Furthemre,  in United States 

v. B r m ,  546 F.2d 166, 177-182 (5th C i r .  1977), it was held that the trial 

court erred not t o  alluw an answer on cross-examination &ich went to the 

witness's bias. But it was held harrriiess error because the essence of the 

witness ' s bias had already been bm@t forth. In the case at bar, the 

defense counsel was  able to  demonstrate to the jury that the witness knew 

that the Georgia murder had occurred and that he would help the s ta te  because 

he could possibly need the s ta te ' s  assistance i f  ti= charges were f i l ed  

(I3 785) . So the error, i f  any, would be at ms t harmless . In any event, 

the record discloses that the appellant waived any objection because his 

counsel below abandon his  q e s t  to  delve into the facts and agreed to ask 

the pertinent question regarding the witness's knowledge that the Georgia 

murder had occurred &en he talked to the Florida authorities (R 785). 

a Ini t ia l ly  the trial court also granted the s ta te ' s  mt ion  

in l e e  t o  prohibit the defense frum impeaching Jbbert Taylor regarding - 
infonmtion given to  Detective Bourden i n  l a t e  1982 (R 2565). Tne mtion,  

which is uncontradicted, q l a i n e d  that k t ec t ive  Boaden has unsolved cr-s 

which had l i t t l e  evidence regarding the identity of the perpetrator. 

Detective Bowdenasked Taylor i f  he had comnitted these crimes but in doing 

so promised not to  f i l e  the charges i f  Taylor "confessed. " ?he detective 

would "clear" these cases in an effort  to apparently save police work and 

not investigate other suspects for  these crimes. None of these charges 

could be f i led  against Taylor and the mt mde such a finding (R 1224). 

It was also not contested that these "confessions" to  Detective Bourden 

related in any way to the t e s t b n y  i n  the present case (R 1223-1224). 

It must be remnhered that the jury heard that Taylor had 

four (4) previous felony convictions (R 740) . On cross-examination, 



a appellant was able t o  divulge from Taylor that he 'had negotiated a "deal" 

with the s t a t e  in which armed robbery convictions would have sentences 

concurrent with a sentence that the witness was presently serving in 

Mississippi (R 755-757) . The defense attorney was allowed to ask Taylor, 

%en you c d t t e d  these various offenses for  which you have been previously 

convicted and for  wkich you have made deals with the s t a t e  of Florida - - " 
(R 758-759) .3 Additionally, appellant asked Taylor i f  he was aware of the 

Georgia murder at the time he f i r s t  gave h i s  statement to Detective 'Fiansen 

i n  October of 1982 inrplicating appellant (R 786). It was revealed in cross- 

exmination that Taylor hoped to  have the Florida authorities act  on h i s  

behalf with the upcoming Georgia murder charge (R 783-784). In Lhited States 

v. Tracey, 675 F.2d 433, 436-439 (1st C i r .  1982) the defense wanted to  

impeach a gavemment witness by showing that a Lhited States attorney had 

• bailed him out of j a i l  on a drunk and ciisorderly charge. Other extensive 

cross-examination had already revealed th is  witness ' s bias. The Second 

Circuit noted that one factor to  be considered as the extent t o  which the 

excluded question bears upon character t r a i t s  that were otherwise sufficiently 

explored. A trial court need not p d t  unending excursions i f  the impeach- 

ment reasonably carrgletes the picture developed by the defense. Where the 

cross-exmination is not crucial nor would it be that probative no reversible 

error w i l l  be found. See, Taylor v .  Curry, - 708 F. 2d 886, 893 (2d C i r  . 1983) . 
Appellant must b n s t r a t e  that h i s  inabil i ty t o  inquire about th is  l i ne  of 

inrpeadmmt created a substantial danger of prejudice t o  t e s t  the truth of 

the witness's testimony. Where a court allms substantial cross-examination 

and the witness has admitted his  bias and the area has sufficiently been 

a '~efense counsel brought out that Taylor had made an inconsistent stat-t 
t o  the effect  that he took jewelry pursuant to  burglaries only &en in fact  
he achitted a t  t r i a l  that he took jewelry pursuant to  robberies also (R 779) . 



a explored, no conviction wil l  be reversed on such a confrontation issue. 

These principals were applied to  the facts in United States v. F'ranzen, 

688 F.2d 496, 498-502 (7th Cir. 1982). In the case at bar, the essence of 

the iqeachnmt was brought t o  the jury's attention, i . e . ,  the witness was 

a career criminal, made "deals" w i t h  the s ta te  for  h is  testinmny, and hoped 

t o  have the s ta te  help him for his  upmming Georgia m~y'cier charge. Tne 

fact  that this witness "confessed" to crimes which could never be charged , 

and which had nothing to do with th i s  case d d  be of l i t t l e  significance 

and would f a i l  in camparison to  the impeachmat that had already been brought 

forth t o  the jury. 

Additionally, these "confessions" would unlikely help the 

witness ' s cause or  status with the s t a t e  authorities. A s  such, any error 

would be hamless. See, United States v. Brawn, supra. - 

• In fact ,  appellant never demmstrated that Taylor hoped to,  or  

did "curry favor" with the s t a t e  by these actions. Defense admitted that 

they did not have ample t h  to  investigate these cases (R 1224). Since 

there is a lack of record to  develop a confrontation violation, th is  point 

should be a f f i m d .  See, United States v.  Cunningham, - 638 F.2d 696, 699 

(4th C i r  . 1980) . 



THE ' I lUAL COURT, HAD THE DISCRETION 
TO Anm THE PmSEmION TO W T  A 
CONSISTENT PRIOR STATEXEDIT TO REBUT 
AN I?/IPLLED CHARGE OF RECENT FABRICATION. 

Appellant claims the t r i a l  court erred mder section 90.801(2) (b) , 

Florida Statutes,(1983), by allawing the prosecutor to  have Detective Hansen 

relate to the jury a prior consistent staterrent of the s ta te ' s  witness, 

Fbbert Taylor. Detective Hansen had taken Taylor ' s s tatemnt i q l i c a t i n g  

appellant i n  October of 1982. Appellant argues that th is  witness, at the 

time of the statement, was aware of the Georgia m d e r  (R 786) although the 

charge had not been f i l ed  (R 753); ergo the October, 1982 statement to 

Detective Eiansenwas not made prior to  the d s t e n c e  of the facts o r  evi- 

dence which indicate a motive to  falsify. 

• Ini t ia l ly ,  appellee would note that the objections asserted a t  

t r i a l  (e.g., defense counsel maintained he could not cross-emmine a state- 

ment) were not the same grounds asserted by appellant herein (R 834-836, 

841-843) . A s  such, th is  point has not been preserved and must be affimed. 

In order fo r  an argummt to  be cognizable on appeal, it must be the specific 

intention asserted as a legal gromd for objection or acception a t  the t r i a l  

level. - See, Steinhorst v. State, supra, a t  338. 

During cross-emmination of RDbert Taylor, the following in- 

formtion was revealed to the jury: 

Q. (by defense counsel) In fact ,  
there was a negotiation in this  case 
concerning an anwd robbery charge, 
was there not, and your testimony? 

A. . . . I didn't understand the 
question. 

Q. You i n  fact pled guilty t o  a ,  



an a m d  robbery charge i n  exchange 
for the s ta te  dropping another m d  
robbery charge against you and receiving 
concurrent tim or  time to run overlaping 
with yo= Mississippi sentence, isn '  t 
that true? 

A .  Yes, s i r ,  I did make a deal a t  one 
time. 

(R 755-756). The statemnt implicating appellant was obtained fram Robert 

Taylor by Detective &en on October 16, 1982 (R 833). On redirect examina- 

t ion it was established that  the robbery charge for  which the witness obtained 

"deals" from the s t a t e  were brought forth i n  1983. It was also established 

that the Georgia murder charges were not f i l ed  unt i l  after the October, 1982 

statement (R 753, 786). C h  cross-examination the defendant adnitted that 

he was hoping that the Florida authorities would intervene on his behalf 

• in the Georgia m d e r  charge (R 783-784) . 
Specifically, the defense counsel impeached the witness regarding 

f i r m .  The witness stated a t  trial he m d d  carry a .25 automatic weapon 

a t  tines (emphasis supplied) . Defense counsel referred to the witness ' s -- 
October, 1982 s t a t m t  to  Detective Hansen which stated that the witness 

normally carried such a weapon around [emphasis supplied (R 763)] . Again 

on cross-examination, the witness stated he discarded other firearms that 

he had owned. Defense counsel again referred to the October, 1982 statement 

which demnstrated that the witness had told Detective W e n  that he never 

threw his firearms away (R 764-765) . 

The clear implication of a l l  this cross-examination is that  

the witness was tai loring h i s  t r i a l  t e s t b n y  to  please the s ta te  authorities. 

The record reveals that the robberies for  which the witness obtained a 

"deal" and the Georgia m d e r  charge (emphasis supplied) were subsequent to 



a the October, 1982 statemnt and, thus the i m p e a h n t  wauld imply that the 

witness was fabricating his testimny at  trial for the s ta te  because of the 

plea bargain concerning the robberies and the upcuming Georgia murder t r i a l .  

The t e s t k n y  regarding Taylor's carrying a gun and disposing of his firearms 

would also imply recent fabrication of his entire staterent of October, 1982, 

and thus it was proper to  show the jury that Taylor's testimony was not a 

recent fabrication because of the subsequent events but was, for  the mst 

part ,  consistent with his i n i t i a l  interview with Detective Hansen i n  October 

of 1982. 'his statement was made "prior to the existence of a fact  said to 

indicate bias, interest ,  corruption, o r  other mt ive  to falsify.  " McElveq 

v.  State, 415 So. 2d 746, 748 (Fla. 1st 1982) . In Wilson v. State, 434 

So. 2d 59 (Fla. 1st E A  1983) , a witness was cross-examined regarding plea 

negotiations, the s ta te ' s  sentencing recmmndation, and the fact  that the 

• s ta te  delayed the witness ' s sentencing unt i l  af ter  the present trial was 

finished. 'he record, disclosed that the witness ' s prior s tatemnt was mde 

at the time of his arres t ,  before any plea negotiations had ensued. Likewise, 

i n  the case at bar, the October, 1982 statement was mde before the robbery 

plea negotiations and before the Georgia murder charge was actually f i led.  

Appellant has h n s t r a t e d  no error on ti-is point. 



POINT V I  

THE TRIAL COURT W CORRECT I N  
DEILYING A MUCION FUR MISTRIAZ, BASED 
UPON THE PROSECUTOR~S ~ M M E N T  IN THE 
CLL)SING A R W N T  ON ?HE EVIDENCE. 

Appellant contends certain cansnents by the prosecutor on 

closing argmmt constituted a carnnent on his ri&t not to testify. 

Appellee notes these camrents were ma& i n  rebuttal to what defense counsel 

had argued previously in  closing argument. Defense counsel told the jury, 

the witness (Richard bbntgamery), was a five (5) time convicted felon, who 

had testified for the state orily to obtain a favorable position with his 

crimes and c o r n i t a n t  sentences (R 1378) . Specifically, defense counsel 

argued : 

He cut himelf a very good deal, a 
very, very fa t  deal, and what does he 
do in  response? He offers up Conald 
D u f m  . . . a man F3ho i s  i n  the cel l  
next to him in the j a i l ,  a man whose 
papers he has access, a man who took 
all of his legal papers he muld have 
access to  in the j a i l  cell .  

(R 1379). ?he prosecutor was implying that Montgcmery had obtained the 

incrhinating evidence against appellant by obtaining his legal papers ; not 

by actually listening to appellant. The state attorney's objection that 

there was no evidence to support this was o v e d e d  by the trial court 

?he s tate  attorney, during his rebuttal arguwnt, did a M t  

that bbntgomery had obtained "deals" from governmental authorities (R 1396) . 
The s tate  then detailed the agreemnts that bntgomery had mde with the 

state (R 1397-1398) . The state then argued: 

Nobody has  con^ here and said, Mr. 
Miller's testimxly was wrong, or 



incorrect, or that that was not the 
deal that he was offered. So, take 
i t ,  because it ' s uncontradicted. 

Next, the s ta te  attorney asked the j my, how m n t g m r y  could 

know a l l  the details of the crin-e without hearing it fran the appellant 

himself, because Wntgwmq did not know the other s ta te ' s  wit;-iesses (R 1398- 

1399). Appellee w i l l  s e t  out the allegedly objectionable c m n t  in full:  

I thought it was interesting that Mr. 
Dvorak (the defense counsel) said that 
Kichard f i l l e r  (a. k. a .  kntgmery) could 
have had access to  Donald Dufaus's legal 
papers. So far  as I h o w ,  when people 
are in j a i l ,  they are locked up i n  j a i l .  
They are not given the free run of the 
place, and you haven't n d e r  one, heard 
any evidence that Donald Mour had any 
legal papers i n  the ce l l  w i t h  him, and, 
nuher  two, you haven't heard that any of 
his  legal papers -- 

(R 1399-1400) . A t  that point an objection was interposed, and the prosecutor 

argued that the defense counsel had argued i n  his  closing argumnt that 

Ibn tgmry  could have gotten access to appellant's legal papers, and that the 

prosecutor was enti t led to say that nobody tes t i f ied that he had any legal 

papers i n  his  ce l l  (R 1401) . The court noted that appellant's objection was 

"unusual and q r e c i d e n t e d  for  me to  sustain that type of objection unless 

i t ' s  sanething way out of line." (R 1402) . The court also noted that each 

admcate would have his  views as to what the evidence might be. 

Appellee submits that these a r w n t s  are not ccmments on 

appellant's right to  tes t i fy  but are rather cormaents on the evidence. In 

State v .  Bolton, 383 So. 2d 924 (Fla . 2d DCA 1980) , the s t a t e  attorney cornrented 

i n  argment, that the defense attorney never told the jury what h is  defense 

was. The defendant contended that this was a c-t on Bolton's right not 



to tes t i fy  but the ccmrments were held to be directed at the defense counsel 

and h i s  theory of the case; not the defendant himself. United States v. 

Fogg, 652 F. 2d 551, 557-558 (5th C i r  . 1981), also made the distinction 

between ccnrments regarding the fai lure of a defendant to  tes t i fy  as opposed 

to  torments which contour or explain the evidence. In Fog ,  the Fifth Circuit 

noted that the caments were proper, because it was obvious that the defendant 

was not the only person who could have controverted the pverrwent ' s case 

(where the prosecutor told the jury that it was the defendant who put h is  

l iberty i n  jeopardy because there was no legitimate explanation for the 

o6fense) . In Woodside v. State, 206 So. 2d 426, 427-429 (Fla. 3d DCA 1968), 

the Third District held that the s t a t e  still could argue the character of 

the evidence and t e l l  the jury that the evidence was i n  conflict. %ley 

v.  State, 395 %.2d 235, 237 (Fla. lst DCA 1981), held that the s ta te  

attorney may cmierit on the uncontradicted or uncontroverted nature of the 

evidence and may even say that there was an absence of evidence on a certain 

issue. Such argumnt would not refer to  the defendant's right not to  tes- 

t i fy .  The First  District noted that the s ta te  was &ty bound to mat on 

the evidence as it existed. Lhquestionably, the argurrent of the prosecutor 

in the case a t  bar was a c-t on the evidence; not defendant's r ight  to 

r a i n  s i lent .  

In cannot be contended that the contested argumnts were mani- 

fest ly intended to cormi t  on the defendant's r ight  to remain s i lent .  Nor 

could the jury possibly and necessarily construe these argurrents on t'ne 

evidence as a camment on defendant's right.  See, United States v. Stwart-  - 
Caballero, 686 F.2d 890, 892-893 (11th Cir. 1982), i n  affi- a conviction 

where the s ta te  attorney said; i n  opening argumnt that the defendant m y  o r  

n.ay not have a different version of the facts,  and on closing argwmt 



a attacked one of the defendants who tes t i f i ed  by saying that it was impro- 

bable that  a stranger would let the defendants board a boat w i t h  5.5 million 

dollars worth of marijuana, and that the defendants didn' t answer the 

qtaestion to  "your satisfaction." 

Finally, appellee asserts that defense ccxmsel invited th is  

carrent. Appellant was allowed to  discuss the evidence as he saw it; there- 

fore the s t a t e  was certainly ent i t led  t o  rebut that ar-nt. In  Wited 

States v.  Diecidue, 603 F. 2d 535, 552-553 (5th C i r .  1979), the court held 

that a response to  a particular c o m n t  of the defense attorney would not 

be improper. The prosecutor's argurrent wodd reasonably infer that such 

ccmnents would direct  a jury's attention to  the defendant's argments and 

not the defendnat's r ight  t o  r d n  s i l en t .  See also, F o g ,  supra, a t  -- 

557-558, where it was held that the state attorney could make the comnents 

• i n  rebuttal t o  the defense argwmt that the defendant had lived over s ixty 

(60) years as an outstanding c i t izen  and rho's  whole life was in jeopardy 

because of the criminal charge. There is no doubt that these coarments 

would be proper i n  and of thanselves , but certainly they are proper under 

the doctrine of "irnrited error" and rebuttal.  



porn  VII 

THE TRTAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DIS- 
CRETION WHEXE THE APPELLANT'S PRESENCE 
W NOT REQUIRED UNDER F'LDRIDA RULE OF 
QiIMINAL PROCEDURE 3.180, 'DIE AP- 
WAS VOLIJNMRILY ABSENT THE HEARING, 
AND 'IFE ERROR, IF' ANY, WAS HARMLESS. 

Appellant contends there is prejudicial error when the trial court 

ruled that the appellant had voluntarily absented himself fram a pretr ial  motion 

to suppress statements made by appellant to inmate Richard Pbntgamery. - See, 

point 11, supra. Specifically appellant argues that under Florida Rule of 

Criminal Procedure 3.180 (3) and (6) , his presence was required and there was 

not a sufficient showing that his absence was voluntary. 

Appellee submits that a pret r ia l  motion of this nature, wherein 

a defendant's presence is required, is  not encampassed within the rule.  Rule 

3.180 (3) pertains to pret r ia l  conferences only. (emphasis supplied) . Rule 

3.180 (6) deals with the proffer of tes t h n y  ; not the suppression of evidence. 

Pintions of this  kind are not contemplated in  this rule as explained i n  the 

author' s c m m t  pursuant to  33 Fla. Stat.  Ann. 254 (1975) , which states : 

moreover, it should be noted that the 
rule does not apply to  hearings on mtions 
made prior to o r  after  trial. 

The Florida Supreme Court explained this i n  Herzog v. State, 439 So. 2d 1372, 

1375-1376 (Fla. 1983), where it was held that a defendant's absence at a pre- 

t r i a l  motion to suppress was not a crucial s t e e  under rule 3.180. Since 

appellant's presence was not required under the rule, the mur t  ' s ruling was 

In any event, the trial court did have the discretion to find that 

appellant had voluntarily absented himself because the appellant, prior to the 

hearing, went on a "hunger strike. " Jerry J-s , the director of corrections 



for  Orange County, t e s t i f i ed  for  appellant. He t e s t i f i ed  appellant had been 

examined by a doctor at the jail and due t o  h i s  refusal t o  eat had l o s t  forty- 

f ive  (45) pounds (R 1106-1107) . He heard appellant tell the doctor that  he 

was refusing to eat but appellant would not answer the doctor when the physician 

asked why appellant refused t o  eat. M s e ,  appellant refused to  allow the 

doctor t o  draw blood. %ereafter, the doctor had to obtain appellant ' s consent 

t o  go t o  the hospital and be fed intrwezlously o r  else the appellant would have 

died of starvation (R 1107-1108) . I n  cross-examination, James tes t i f i ed  that 

he had not heard any comnents that appellant's jail food had been adulterated 

(R 1110) . A t  the t k  of th i s  hearing, appellant was i n  the hospital (R 1111). 

Pursuant t o  that  testimony (no other test imny was offered), the court found 

that appellant ' s absence was due t o  h i s  own actions (R 1113) . Defense counsel 

during argument did proffer heresay fmm an i m t e  that appellant had been 

struck on h i s  head and lay on the f loor bleeding fo r  one and one-half (1 1/2) 

hours before being discovered and attended t o  by jail personnel, but defense 

never disclosed who the i m t e  was nor requested to  have that person t es t i fy  

(R 1113) . Given the tes t imny paraphrased above, the trial court was w e l l  

within i ts discretion in finding that appellant had voluntarily gone on a 

"hunger strike" and as such voluntarily absented himself f ran  any p re t r i a l  

proceedings . A defendant can absent himself voluntarily from a crucial stage 

of the proceedings and thus obviate the necessity of invoking ru le  3.180. 

State v.  b lendez ,  244 So.2d 137, 139 (Fla. 1971) and ZaJman v. State,  80 

Fla. 18, 85 So. 166, 169-170 (Fla. 1920) . Appellee submits there is no dif - 
ference between a defendant who voluntarily w a l k  out of the courtroom and 

appellant who voluntarily disables h ime l f  so that he is not able t o  attend 

(or understand) the ongoing court proceedings. 

Finally, appellee submits that even i f  emr could be found, it 

would be harmless. Captain Michael Perm' s tes t inmy regarded h i s  interactions 



with inmate Richard Mtgoanery and as such appellant ' s presence would not 

be necessary to aid his attorney (R 1123-1141). The only other evidence ad- 

mitted a t  this hearing i s  the deposition of Richard Montgc~mery , which defense 

counsel qwted from extensively. ?here was no allegations that appellant 

was in attendance a t  this deposition nor that his presence would have enhanced 

or helped his attorney in any way in this proceeding. See, McGee v. State, 

433 So. 2d 66 (Fla. 4th DCA 1983) , h e r e  it was held error under rule 3.180 

in considering and rejecting a proffer of evidence by the s ta te  without the 

presence of the defendant, but the error was held harmless beyond a reasonable 

do& t . 



THE COURT DID NCYT ABUSE ITS DISCREXION 
I N  REtflTSING TO W APPELUNI"S SECOND 
r n O N  MIR c o m a .  

Appellant argues the trial court abused i ts discretion by refusing 

a second mt ion  to continue. ?he second mt ion  to continue was predicated upon 

the initial refusal OF the t r i a l  court to authorize expenses for travel to depose 

Robert Taylor in Mississippi and Raymnd Ryan i n  Georgia (R 2363- 2364, 2401) . 
The mt ion  alleged that certain Mississippi l a w  e n f o r c a n t  officers had infor- 

mation and statements regarding Robert Taylor's c r i w s  i n  Mississippi and 

Florida. ?he mt ion  did not say what the m s  of these officers were, nor de- 

ta i l  the specific information, nor say what the information would lead to 

(R 960, 2363-2364) . 

Altbu& the trial court did deny the mt ion  to provide travel 

expenses, on Wch 23, 1984 the court ordered the s ta te  to provide Robert Taylor 

and Raymond Ryan for  deposition not less than th i r ty  (30) days prior to 

the trial date (R 967, 2401). Additionally, the s ta te  attorney told defense 

counsel that he (the prosecutor) would obtain the mms of police from 

MLssissippi who had information regarding Robert Taylor for  defense counsel, 

and wu ld  ask these police officers to cooperate with the defense should the 

defense choose to telephone these potential witnesses (R 963) . The s ta te  

attorney cornrented that appellant knew that Robert Taylor had pled to "life" 

i n  a Mississippi murder case i n  order to  tes t i fy  against appellant (R 966). 

Additionally, defense counsel f i l ed  a mt ion  and the trial court 

ordered the s ta te  to  disclose the past criminal records of Robert Taylor and 

4 ~ t  the hearing defense counsel did say that a Detective Erickson of Mississippi 
did have information regarding robberies in Mississippi comnitted by Robert 
Tsylor but again no specifics were supplied nor was any informztion disclosed 
on how it would lead to discoverable materail. 



Raymnd Ryan (R 2365, 2402). There was and i s  no allegation ~ L U L  me state 

did not obey this  order. In addition, the defense had transcripts and hand 

written statements fram Raymnd Ryan (R 1025). The record discloses that Fbbert 

Taylor was indeed available for  defense counsel t o  depose within th i r ty  (30) 

days of trial (R 1047). Although Raymcrnd Ryan was not available within th is  

time (the state explained he was paroled before he d d  be b r o e t  duwn 

fram Georgia), the state indicated that the defense did not depose wan unt i l  

ten (10) days from when he was available due to  a defense schedule conflict 

(R 1048) . In any event, R a p n d  Ryan was available t o  be deposed on Pky 4; 

seventeen (17) days before trial (R 1024, 1026, 1048) . 
The record discloses that Raymmd Ryan was  extensively cross-examined 

(R 813-830). The crux of the cross-examination was  to  establish that RDbert 

Taylor awned the murder weapon, was a drug dealer and user, had possession of 

much of the stolen jewelry of the victim's, was untruthful about his past 

q loyment ,  and made a ccmmt  that he did not want to  be 'buck" with the 

murder weapon (R 813-823) . Additionally, Ryan was impeached frm his  deposition 

that  he got much of the information regarding the murder from the police officers ; 

not appellant (R 829-830). Appellant has not, and cannot nuw at th is  mnmt 

demxlstrate any prejudice resulting from the denial of h i s  motion to continue 

regarding Raymnd Ryan. 

RDbert Taylor was  impeached extensively regarding h i s  past crirnes, 

"deals" with the state as w e l l  as federal authorities, h i s  present murder charge 

i n  Georgia, as w e l l  as h i s  hope t o  get state off ic ia ls  t o  intervene i n  that 

case, his drug use, h i s  possession of firearms, and stealing jewelry i n  the 

course of robberies as w e l l  as in the course of burglaries (R 755-784) . Taylor's 

deposition was used t o  impeach h i s  test imny (R 768). 

a Any witnesses that appellant wished to  depose regarding the k t e  

Richard bntg-ry, were available t o  him because they were local witnesses 



6 .  g . , Jerry James and Gary Bourdon of the Orange County Sheriff ' s Off ice) . 
Gary BourQn was in  fact deposed on my 10 , 1984 (R 1040) . Again the record 

discloses that  this h t e  was thomugF-ly impeached regarding his  al iases,  

his  "deals" with law enforcemmt authorities concerning armed robberies, h i s  

violation of parole, h is  stealing a car, h is  "junping" bond, and an agreement 

that he would be a witness i f  he did not have to  tes t i fy  against h is  s i s t e r  

i n  criminal charges. He also admitted lying to  the police i n  the past (R 1285- 

1307) . 
Appellant has alleged no discovery violation by the s ta te .  Appellant 

i n  f i l ing  his mt ion  for cause to travel to MLssissipi and Georgia, alleged that 

certain MLss issippi authorities had informtion regarding Robert Taylor (R 2363- 

2364). Tnis information was  as much available to the defense as it was to  the 

s ta te .  Where the information demanded by defendant is accessible to the 

defendant, as well as the state, a denial of a continuance wi l l  not be an abuse of 

discretion. - See, State v .  Cornce, 392 So. 2d 1029, 1031 (Fla. 4th DCA 1981). 

A mtion  for  continuance which is denie w i l l  be affixxed when no abuse of 

discretion clearly and affirmatively appears i n  the record. Additionally, the 

appellant must make a clear showing of a palpable abuse of that discretion. 

See, Magill v. State, 386 So. 2d 1788 (Fla. 1980) and b b l e y  v. State, 327 So. 2d 

900 (Fla. 3d DCA 1976) . Appellant has not demonstrated any prejudice. He has 

not even s h m  on the record who these witnesses would be, much less what they 

would say or how their information could lead to any ~ s c o v e r a b l e  materid. 

The record b n s t r a t e s  that the s ta te ' s  witnesses were thoroughly inpeached. 

In Herman v.  State, 396 So. 2d 222, 227 (Fla. 4th DCA 1981) , a denial of a 

mt ion  t o  continue by the defense was upheld because the defense had an oppor- 

tunity to  depose each s ta te  witness prior to his  testimny. In the case a t  

bar, a l l  the s ta te  witnesses were deposed and a l l  the witnesses had their  

testknsny transcribed. kfense  counsel was  able to use these depositions (and 



did so) t o  impeach these witnesses. Indeed, there was no specified time period 

established as a matter law, lack of preparation on the par t  of the counsel so 

as t o  mandate a continuance. See, Cox v.  State,  354 So. 2d 957 (Fla. 3d DCA 

1978) , which announced th is  principle in holding that no continuance need be 

granted where a new attorney (both f rom the same law firm) was appointed one 

(1) day prior  to a violatian of probation hearing. Appellant, after h i s  con- 

tinuance m t i o n  was denied, never proffered any other new witnesses o r  new 

evidence e i ther  relating to iqeadxnent or  defensive nature. See, Lusk v. 

State,  44.6 So. 26 1038, 1040-1041 (Fla. 1984) , which upheld a denial of a m t i o n  

to  continue where the depositions were ccnnpleted shortly before trial but the 

depos it ions were transcribed. 

The fac t  that Robert Taylor took the Fif th hndment  during h is  

deposition should likewise not be grounds fo r  granting the continuance. See, 

Jent v.  State ,  408 So.2d 1024, 1048 (Fla. 1981), which denied a m t i o n  to  con- 

tinue based on the s- grounds. Appellant, who has not properly proffered 

any t e s t h n y ,  cannot argue that any of this potential evidence would exculpate 

him. 

It must be remnbered that appellant's prior m t i o n  t o  continue 

on January 25, 1984, was granted by the court (R 2343-2344, 2342). 'Ihis factor 

can be considered i n  determining whether there was abuse of discretion to  deny 

continuance mt ion .  See, Mills v .  State ,  280 So. 2d 35 ( n a .  3d DCA 1973) . 

Finally, no abuse of discretion can be found vhere the appellant 

has not complied with Florida Rde of Criminal Procechnce 3.190 (g) by not w r i t -  

ing the m t i o n  nor making the proper verifications . - See, Arrcan v. State ,  

350 So.2d 525 (Fla. 3d DCA. 1977), vhere it was held that  ra abuse of discretion 

resulted in denying a m t i o n  t o  continue where the procedural prerequisite w e r e  

a not camplied with by defense counsel. 



POINT IX 

THERE WAS NO DISCOVERY VIOLATIOX OOM- 
MITI'ED BY THE STATE ATIORNEY AND EVEN 
IF THE STATE'S ACTIONS COULD BE DEEMED 
A DISOOVERY VIOIATION, AF'PEUAN'T SUF- 
FERED NO PREJUDICE ' l l m E 3 Y .  

After a hearing was wndwted pursuant to appellant ' s mt ion  to  

either dismiss the indictmnt or in the alternative to exclude the witness, 

Stacy Sigler (R 2559-2560) , the court found that the witness was not actually 

subpoenaed and that it was not improper for the s ta te  to pursue the m t t e r  

by withdrawing its subpoena and proceeding to secure the witness ' s t a t m t  

without appellant's counsel being present (R 1202). A t  the hearing, the s ta te  

argued that Stacy Sigler was at the s ta te  attorney's office w l m t a r i l y  to 

give a statement pursuant to an age-nt with her attorney (R 1194). The 

s ta te  attorney read fran th is  f i r s t  hearing (deemed a "deposition" by appellant). 

This f i r s t  hearing revealed that Stacy ~ i g l e r  ' s attorney was present and he 

indicated on the record that the witness was testifying voluntarily and would 

be given irmnazity (R 1195). The s ta te  attorney also argued that the witness 

appeared a day or t m  af te r  the subpoena date had passed (R 1195). The s ta te  

attorney read from Stacy Sigler ' s deposition, taken by defense counsel sub- 

sequent to  the disputed s tatemnt given by h e  witness, Sigler (R 1196) . The 

excerpts read into the record were as follows : 

(by the witness, Sigler) . . . They 
withdrew the subpoena, so, I went down 
there right of my own free w i l l .  

Q. (by appellant' s attorney) Would 
you have gone down there before the 16th 
of December, 1983, that  you l i ed  under 
oath (sic)? 

A. Yes. 

(R 1197) . Other excerpts fmm the deposition taken by appellant's cornsel, indi- 

cated that it was not the subpoena that campelled Stacy Sigler to give her 



initial staterrent but her desire to avoid prosecution and to t e l l  the truth by 

testifying against appellant (R 1198) . Fkmlly, the s ta te  argued that had the 

witness wanted to  take the Fifth Amendmnt or  not talk,  it would have had to 

issue another subpoena (R 1199) . In a proceeding of this nature, a trial court 

has broad discretion and it is incurrbant upon the appellant to demonstrate a 

palpable abuse of that discretion. - See, Holman v. State, 347 So. 2d 832 (Fla. 

3d DCA 1977) , where a s ta te  rebuttal witness, wfio was not l i s ted on discovery, 

was allowed to tes t i fy  at trial because the defense knew of this  witness before 

trial even though the witness was not on the discovery l ist .  In the case at 

bar, appellant has offered l i t t l e  o r  nothing to support his position. There is 

nothing i n  the record to indicate that Sigler 's initial s t a t a n t  to the s ta te  

attorney was "tainted" as argued by defense counsel below (R 1193). Even i f  

there were, there certainly is substantial and competent evidence by h i c h  the 

trial court could determine that the i n i t i a l  statanent of the witness was not 

pursuant to a subpoena, but pursuant to  an innunity agre-nt worked out by her 

attorney and the prosecution. Reinforcing this conclusion is the fact  that the 

witness ' attorney was present at this  s ta tmt  (R 1195). 

Under Florida Rule of Wn-inal Procedure 3.220 (b) (3) , defense counsel 

must be given notice and an opportunity to question a witness at deposition, 

when he has f i l ed  a reciprocal discovery l ist  and that witness is included on 

that l ist .  Appellee submits though that under the wording of the rule, that 

witness must be ore whom the defense "expects to call . . . at trial." During 

the hearing on this nntion, appellant's counsel argued that the witness told 

police officers i n i t i a l l y  that she knew nothing about the case (R 1190) . It 

was not unt i l  this s t a t m t  was taken in i t i a l ly  by the s t a t e  attorney that 

Sigler implicated appellant (R 1190) . Under section 90.604, Florida Statutes (1983) 

a a witness must hme personal knowledge of the case before that witness can even 

test ify.  Defense counsel indicated it was  his belief then, that the witness 



was not even cargent n t  to test ify;  therefore, the witness, Sigler was not a 

witness that the defense "expects to ca l l  . . . at trial ." It was revealed at 

this hearing, that the defense witness list  was zrerely a duplicate of the s ta te ' s  

witness l is t  (R 1194). Appellant rel ies on State v. Barr&ero, 432 So.2d 138, 

140, n .5 (ma. 3d DCA 1983) , to support his position that a dezense counsel 

mrely  needs to f i l e  a witness l ist  to e.nsure tha t  he w i l l  be able to attend 

a deposition. Yet this is dicta; the actual issue i n  Barreiro was whbther the 

s ta te  attorney could subpoena a witness pursuant to an investigative subpoena 

where the defense never f i l ed  a demnd for discovery i n  the f i r s t  place. 

Appellee submits that the mere f i l ing  of a witness list does not ccsnprise of all 

defense witnesses "expected" to  be called at the trial. 

Even i f  there were a discovery violation, appellant has not h n -  

strated any prejudice. a-Le key issue i n  any discovery violation is prejudice. 

A discovery violation w i l l  not necessarily require an exclusion of a witness. 

'Ihese principles were announced in Holman, supra. The purpose of discovery 

rules are to eliminate suqxise at trial and allow defense counsel to plan his 

trial strategy. See, Carnivale v. State, 271 So. 2d 793, 795 (Fla. 3d DCA 1973) , 

where it was held that disclosing a co-defendant right before the trial was pre- 

judicial to  the defense where the co-defendant was never l i s t ed  as a witness. 

See also, Kelly v. State, 311 So. 2d 124 (FLa. 3d DCA 1975), where the defense -- 
a t  trial was never notified that a deposition had been taken nor was the defense 

supplied with the deposition transcript. In  the case at bar, appellant can 

claim no surprise. s ig ler l  s deposition was taken by defense counsel subsequent 

to her statemnt given to  the s ta te  attorney (R 1196). Furthemre,  appellant 

had not shown on the record how Sigler 's  statement was "tainted" nor how this 

fact  prejudiced him in the preparation of the trial. Appellant's ar-nt is 

a speculation at  best . 

]Even assuning that the prosecutor did "taint" the testinmy of 



Sigler and forced her to testify against her will,  and even assuming that 

defenseco~e1wasnotab1eto"f lush1~thisfac touta t thesubsequentdeposi -  

tion, the sanction of excluding the witness or dismissing the indicmnt  under 

this discovery rule would not be proper. Lhder section 27.04, Florida Statutes, 

(1983), the state attorney could have actually subpoenaed Sigler prior to the 

indictment. Pursuant to this investigative subpoena the prosecutor could have 

"tainted" her t e s t k n y  and £arced her to tes t i fy  the way he desired. Lhder 

such circwtances , the defense muld have no rerredy under rule 3.220 (b) (3) to 

have this witness excluded or to have the indictment dismissed. But since the 

deposition would be taken post- indictment, appellant seeks to use discovery- 

violation rez~ledies. But there i s  no nexus between the discovery violation and 

the allegation of abuse. %ere my be other avenues to disqualify such a w i t -  

ness, but the discovery rules are a shield, not a sword. Appellant cannot, by 

mrely demonstrating a technical violation of a discovery rule, transfornl that 

violation into a panecea for a l l  conceivable issues. - See, Collier v. Baker, 

155 Fla . 425, 27 2d. 652 (Fla. 1945) ,  ere a state attorney, post-indictment , 

issued an investigative subpoena pursuant to section 27.04, Florida Statutes 

(1941), but the witness refused to testify because she participated, being a 

defense witness, and it was held that she was in contesnpt for not responding to 

the subpoena. 



POINT X 

THE TRIAT., COURT DID WT ABUSE ITS DIS- 
CW3TION I N  REQUIRING AE'PEL;LANT TO WEAR 
LEG IRONS AT HIS T W ,  ESPECIALLY WHEN3 
NO OBJECI'ION W INTERPOSED FOR A MIS- 
TRIAL, AND SUCH ERROR IF ANY, WOULD BE 
llAmaESS. 

Appellant's counsel b e l w  objected to  appellant being shackled with 

leg irons during the t r i a l .  The counsel did acknowledge that there was a covering 

but in  his  observation it stuck "out l ike  a sore thMb . " Defense counsel further 

argued he was not convinced that the cover h i c h  hid the leg shackles was adequate 

because appellant might need to  sh i f t  h is  feet  during the long hours of t h  trial 

(R 3) . Defense counsel, as well as the argtnnent on appeal, contends that there 

was  adequate security so that t h s e  was  no campelling reasan to  have appellant's 

legs shackled. The t r i a l  court did, pursuant to defense requests, r m e  the 

handcuffs from appellant (R 13, 334, 1506) . 
But the court ruled that the leg shackles must remain. The t r i a l  

court noted for the record that there was a table turned to block appellant' s 

table "in an effort  to  provide sore type of shield or  mdesty panel" and the 

court also noted that the appellant and his  counsel were seated so as to obscure 

the fact  that the appellant had leg restraints (R 5). In United States v. 

Forrest, 623 Fd. 2d 1107, 1116 (5th C i r  . 1980) , a trial court's findings that a 

defendant's dress did not badge him as a prisoner i n  the jury's eyes (where de- 

fendant contended the dress was a prison uniform), was  upheld on appeal. In 

the case at bar, the trial court is  in the best position to  judge the effect ,  i f  

any, of appellant's legs being shackled. The court's description an the record 

is not refuted by appellant, even though appellant may disagree with the trial 

court's ultimate finding. There is simply not enough information on the record 

to shw an abuse of discretion; rather the facts as noted by the trial court 

would q l y  support his finding. 

-48- 



Later on in the proceedings, appellant renewed his  motion to  have 

the leg chains r-ved. A t  th is  point, appellant finally argued that to  ccmpel 

the appellant to  wear  the restraints  could be reversible error (R 334). During 

this  aqpmnt ,  appellant requested the court to put another table a t  the s ta te  

attorney's table (in a similar position to the table that was blocking appellant's 

feet frm the jury) . The court asked the prosecutor to respond to the request. 

Ihe prosecutor said he had no objection to putting another table a t  the s ta te  

attorney's table sinilar to appellant's arrangemnt (R 335-336). Thereafter, 

no other objections were interposed by appellant, nor was any argment presented. 

In Foster v. State, 266 So. 2d 97, 99-100 (Fla. 3d DCA 1972) , a defendant moved 

for a curative instruction and a mistrial.  The judge did give the curative in- 

struction and it was held that since the defendant made no further motions for 

mistrial he had waived that issw . In the case at bar, appellant made no nmtion 

r e s d l i n g  that for  a mistrial unt i l  l a t e r  i n  the proceedings. WZlen counsel did 

argue that the leg irons could constitute "reversible error" the s t a t e  attorney 

agreed t o  place another table similar t o  appellant 's m a n g e n t .  Since no other 

objection was interposed, appellant has waived any mt ion  for Iristrial. -- See also, 

lhi ted States v. Pbrrow, 537 F.2d 120, 147 (5th Cir. 1976), where the defendant 

did not renew his  mt ion  for nistrial. 

Appellant's argument that there was no compelling reason for shack- 

ling his legs is also refuted by the record. ?he s ta te  reminded the court that  

appellant had a t t e n ~ t e d  to  escape from the Orange County Jail and was on death 

row for two (2) murders i n  the s ta te  of Mississippi (R 334-335). 'Ihe s ta te  noted 

that there were no ba i l i f f s  between appellant and the prosecution. The s ta te  

argued appellant had nothing to  lose. The court explained that the concern was 

not whether appellant could successfully escape, but that in an attenpt smeone 

a could get hurt (R 335-336) . Appellant re l ies  upon Estelle v. William, 425 U. S . 

501 96 S. Ct. 1691,48 L.Ed. 2d. 126 (1976) , which cited I l l inois  v. Allen, 397 U.S . 



337, 90 S . C t .  1057, 25 L.Ed.2d 353 (1970). lhe Suprem Court i n  Estell  explained 

@ that  the Allen decision allowed physical restraint  during a trial h e n  there 

was an essential s ta te  policy. Estelle, supra, at 1693. The S u p r e  Court in 

Estelle, distinguished prison gaxb which furthered no essential s ta te  policy from 

shackles h i c h  could be essential. In the present case, the trial court has 

adequate grounds to  shackle the legs of appellant. 

Finally, appellee submits, that the ,error, i f  any, is harmless. 

Richard Miller, a.k.a. kmtgon~ry,  tes t i f ied on behalf of the s ta te  that he and 

appellant were fellaw inmates at the Orange County Jail (R 1256-1319). In 

United States v. Henderson, 472 F. 2d 556 (5th CQ. 1973), it was held there was 

no error, where a defendant was t r ied  in prison garb because he was charged with 

a prison murder. In  the case at bar, even i f  the jury noticed the leg shackles, 

they heard acknissible testinmy that appellant was  incarcerated for this  murder. 

See also, Neary v. State, 384 So. 2d 881, 885 (FLa. 1980) , h e r e  it was held that -- 

the inadvertent sight a defendant i n  handcuffs by the jury was not so prejudicial 

as to  require a mistrial.  



THE TRIAL COURT AIX&IATELY EXPLAINED 
THE REASON FOR 'IHE EXCIEAL OF 'IHE ONE 
(1) J'UROK AND WAS CY,RRECT IN DENYING 
A MYTION rOR MISTRIAL BECAUSE NO PRE- 
JUDICI3 0 HAVE RESULTED TO 'IHE RE- 
MAINING JUROR. 

During the trial, juror Phyllis Girdner, told the court she re- 

ceived a strange phone ca l l  (R 1282-1283) . 'Ihe court explained to  her that 

her phone nube r  and address were not matters of public record and that no one 

connected with the case would have occasion to ca l l  her (R 1283-1284) . The 

court detemined that Girdner' s phone rider was under her husband's name and 

it believed that juror Girdner was confident that the call had nothing to do 

with the case and l e f t  her on the jury for  the tim being (R 1283). But ri&t 

before closing argurrents ensued, the court aut of abundance of caution disnrissed 

a the juror (R 1344, 1360) . YE. Girdner indicated she talked to juror Dianne 

McGee about the ca l l  (R 1347) . 'he court talked to  M s .  McGee alone. W e  

related what she heard from Girdner , i. e.  , that her husband answered the phone 

on Tuesday morning and an individual asked i f  Mr. - Girdner was there and a f te r  

Nr. G i r d n e r  responded yes, the caller  hung up. (R 1349). ( q h a s i s  supplied). 

The court explained to Ms. McGee that the call had nothing t o  do with the case 

nor originated from people involved i n  the case ana juror McGee stated she had 

no reason to  believe the call had anything to do with the case (R 1350). Upon 

determining that other juror might have heard about the phone ca l l ,  the court 

called in juror Vickie Uine (R 1355). She told the court she heard nothing 

about the c a l l  un t i l  a few seconds ago, relating to  a juror but no other in- 

forrnation was divulged to her (R 1355). 

A t  th is  juncture, the trial court called the jury in.  The court 

explained about the phone call received by Mr. Girdner, and assured the jury 



a that the call had no cormection with the t r i a l ,  that it could not have cane 

from anyone involved i n  the case, and that the call  was not in  connection with 

I Girdner's jury service. Zhe court explained that phone nunhers of the jurors 

were not part of the public records, nor made available to  the public but want- 

ed to mke sure that jurors had no reservations abmt their service (R 1358- 

1359). 

I Determination of whether a substantial justice warrants a mistrial 

i s  within the discretion of the trial court. Dealing with the conduct of jurors 

i s  likewise l e f t  to that same discretion. This principle was announced in 

Doyle v. State, 460 So. 2d 353, 356-357 (Fla. 1984), in holding that there was 

no error in  the trial court's refusing to  grant a mistrial based upon a jluror's 

c m n t  to the defendant's attorney. A t r i a l  court must determine i f  the con- 

tact raised any serious questions or  possible prejudice to the litigants. 

a Barring such prejudice, a trial court's determination that the jurors can be 

impartial  should not be overturned. See, Alfonso v. State, 443 So. 2d 176 (Fla. 

3d DCA 1983) , upholding a t r i a l  court ' s decision not to grant a mistrial where 

bm (2) jurors had talked to a police witness and only one (1) jurors was 

dismissed. In the case a t  bar, the trial court did not abuse its discretion 

in granting a mistrial because it was adequately h n s t r a t e d  on the record 

that the phone call could not have raised any serious qkst ion of possible pre- 

judice. The record shms the call  was to Mr. G i r d n e r ,  not the juror., ?he 

court very meticulously explained that the ca l l  could not have resulted from 

the t r i a l ,  inasmuch as phone h e r s  and addresses of jurors were not d i d g e d  

to the public. 

Certainly, the trial court's explanation to the jury, in  the case 

a t  bar, would dissolve any reasonable doubt that the jurors were tainted with 

the knowledge of this phone call .  In Clark v. State, 443 So. 2d 973, 976 (Fla. 



1983), the trial court gave such an instruction after  the jury requested to  

see an Wit not admitted into evidence. The court instructed the jury not 

t o  draw any inferences fram the non-admitted exhibit o r  speculate why it was 

not in evidence. It was held no abuse to deny the mistrial in li&t of this 

instruction. -- See also, State v. Tsesvant, 359 So.2d 524, 526-527 (Fla. 3d DCA 

1978), holding no abuse of discretion h e r e  the trial mt obtained assurances 

from the jury that their encounter w i t h  the defendant in the parking lo t  would 

not affect their  part ial i ty.  

In United States v. Spinella, 506 F. 2d 426, 428-429 (5th C i r .  1975) , 

two (2) jurrors received threatening phone cal ls .  h e  (1) juror was excused. 

The review court held that these vague phone calls were not so inherently pre- 

judicial as t o  require a mistrial. In the case at bar, there is a very tenuous 

connection between the phone ca l l  and the trial. The cal l  i n  the case a t  bar 

was  certainly less aggravating than the calls  in Spinella. %e phone ca l l  was 

not even directed toward the juror but her husband (and the phone nmber was 

i n  h i s  nam). ?he conversation was minim1 even campared to the phone conver- 

sations in the Spinella case. In su& a situation, appellant has demnstrated 

no abuse of discretion by the trial court. 



POINT A11 

AE'PJXLAN'r'S PROPOSED JURY INSTRUCTION 
W PRDPERLY PRECLUDED BY ?HE TRW, COURT. 

Appellant's requested charge in the pertinent part was as follows: 

. . . You are in v e r  to  decline to  
recamrrend the penalty of death even i f  
you find one or m r e  aggravating cir-  
cums tances and no mitigating circumstances . 

Appellee submits that the trial court was  correct i n  denying this  

charge in that it would be superfluous and repetitous of the charges already given 

to  the jury. In Jennings v. State, 453 So. 2d 1109, 1114-1115 (Fla. 1984) , this  

court r e j  ected special jury instructions requested by defendant regarding the 

weighing of aggravating and mitigating ciramstances and held that the appropriate 

standard jury instructions were adequate. In kcKiewicz v. State, 114 So. 2d 684, 

691 (ma. 1959), this court held there was no e m r  to  deny a defendant's requested 

charge, where the issue was already covered by the general instructions . In 

Bolin v. State, 297 So. 2d 317, 319 (Fla. 3d DCA 1974) , i n  rejecting a proposed 

jury instruction on self-defense, it was held that a conviction wrxlld not be 

reversed because a particular instruction was denied where on the whole, the 

charges as given were clear, comprehensive and correct. The court did instruct 

that i f  the jury found that the aggravating circunstances did not justify the 

death penalty, then their  reconmndation should be l i f e  bprisonment (R 1634). 

The court also charged the jury that i f  they found sufficient aggravating c i r -  

cwtances  they still would have the duty to determine whether the mitigating 

factors outweighed those aggravating circunstances (R 163-1635). The trial court 

also instructed the jury that they must consider a l l  the evidence tending to 

establish m e  (1) o r  m r e  nitigating factors and give that evidence such wei@t ' as they feel it should it receive and that the jury -t reach its own concLusion 



of the circumstances present in the case (R 1635- 1636) . F'mther , the t r i a l  court 

charged the jury that the mitigating circmstances need not be proven beyond a 

reasonable doubt (R 1636). Appellee submits these la te r  charges are m r e  than 

adequate to  give the jury an opportunity to recomend a l i f e  sentence. The jury 

is on notice that it had the discretion to find no aggravating circumstances, o r  

even i f  they find an aggravating c i rcmtance  that it can be outweighed by a m i t i -  

I gating circrmstance . The proposed instruction muld  add nothing to the charges 
I 

already given. In Yanks v. State, 261 So. 2d 533 (Fla. 3d DCA 1972) , it was held 

that a rev4z&g court would look t o  the entire charge rather than to  one statement 

out of context i n  determining whether a jury charge is i n  error. When looking at 

the to ta l  charge given, it cannot be argued that the proposed instruction would 

be necessary-, m t k r  it is superf luaus and repetitive. 

Appellee submits that the proposed instruction, in l ight  of the 

standard jury instructions given by the court the case would be 

emoneous . In Griffin v. State, 370 So. 2d 860, 861 (Fla. 1st DCA 1979) , in  re- 

viewing a jury charge, the court held, ". . . it is fundammtal that the court's 

instructions t o  the jury s b u l d  re la te  to  and be confined to  issues c o n c d n g  

evidence which has been received at the t r i a l ,  . . ." In effect,  the proposed 

instruction would be analogous t o  requesting a jury pardon. The result  of such 

instruction would be to  invite a jury t o  ignore the evidence (as opposed to 

weighing i t )  . Jury pardons may exist i n  fact  but have mver existed i n  law. 

Appellant has not ci ted any case l a w  to the effect that such an instruction would 

be applicable at a trial phase and appellee submits such a charge should likewise 

not be applicable a t  the penalty phase. The trial c a r t ,  i n  the case at bar, 

specifically instructed the jury that their advisory sentence should be based 

upon the evidence that was heard at trial and at the penalty phase (R 1633). 



Tne charge quoted by appellant, requested the jury to folluw the l a w  and to  base 

their recomnendation on whether a sufficient nunber of mitigating circumstance[s] 

existed to  ournigh any aggravating circumstances found to  exist (R 1632-1633). 

Finally, the court instructed the jury: 

The sentence that you recamnend to  the 
court tnust be based upon the facts as 
you find them from the evidence and the 
law. You should weigh the aggravating 
circmtances and your advisory sen- 
tence must be based on these considerations 

(R 1636). Appellee submits that a trial court catmot, i n  one breath t e l l  the 

jury to  follow the law and i n  amther instruct the jury that it may disregard 

the la. 

Appellee submits then, . that this  proposed jury instruction would 

not only be superfluous but would also contradict and obfuscate the correct 

standard jury instructions already given to  the panel. Appellee notes that 

appellant did not mve to  str ike the standard jury instructions beluw. In 

Bolin, supra, the review court noted that the defendant did not argue a t  t r i a l  -- 
that the lower court erred i n  giving the other self-defense jury instructions 

where the defendant was proposing an additional instruction. Since the instruc- 

t ions given (recited i n  this point, would be inconsistent with the pro- 

posed instruction, defense counsel beluw should have objected to  the standard 

jury instructions ( i  . e . , that the jury must follow the law and the evidence 

educed a t  the t r i a l  i n  the penalty phase) . To the extent the defense c o m e 1  

beluw did not do this he has failed to  preserve the objection for proper review. 

Appellee submits that appellant's assertion cannot be predicated 

upon &egg v. Georgia, 420 U. S. 155, 199, 96 S.Ct. 2909, 2937, 49 L.Ed.2d 859 

(1976) , m r  Randolph v. State, 8 F. L.W. 446 (Fla. Novaher 10, 1983) . Neither 

a of these cases imply that the proposed instruction is proper. Judge McDonald's 

dissent i n  Randolph was not i n  relation to  jury instructions but was a directive 



t o  trial courts. - Id. at 449. In any event, t h i s  court has explici t ly  rejected 

such a proposed jury instruction i n  Kennedy v. State,  9 F.L.W. 291, 292 (ma. 

July 12, 1984) (i. e. , i q r i s o m t  d d  be recammded even though no mitigating 

circurns tances were faund) . 



POLNT X I 1 1  

THE 'SRIAL COURT PROPERLY PERMLm 
TESTIMDNY R E m I l \ j G  A PRIOR CAPITAL 
CONVICTION PURSCANT TO SECI'IONS 921.141 (1) 
AND (5) (d) , FWRIDA ST.= (1983) . 

Appellant contends that evidence of h i s  prior conviction went "to 

far" because it becam the "feature" of the penalty phase. Appellant makes 

an analogy between the evidence presented a t  the pmalty phase and section 

90.404(2) (a),  Florim Statutes (1983), (which deals with similar fact  evidence 

of other crimes to prove the offense charged at t r i a l )  . 
Appellant acknawledges tha t  prior case law allows evidence and 

k c t s  of a prior capital felony to  be presented at the penalty phase as opposed 

to only admitting the E r e  j u d p n t  and sentence. - See, Elledge v. State, 346 

So. 2d 998, 1001-1002 (Fla. 1977) , and the pertinent part of section 921.141(1) , 

Florida Statutes (1983), quoted therein. Justus v. State, 438 So.2d 358, 368 

• (Fla. 1983), (admitting the confession of a prior capital or  violent crimt), 

&lap v. State, 440 So. 2d 1242, 1255 (Fla. 1983) , (admitting evidence of a 

prior conviction of a felony entailing the use or threat of violence), and 

Perri v. State, 441 So. 2d 606, 607-608 (Fla. 1983) , (admitting details of a 

prior felony involving the use o r  threat of violence) . This court explained 

i n  Alvord v. State, 322 So. 2d 533, 538-539 (Fla. 1975) : 

There should not be a narrow application 
nor interpretation of rules of evidence i n  
penalty hearing, whether i n  regard to re- 
levance or as to any other m t t e r  except 
i l legally seized evidence. 

Appellant' s analogy to similar fact evidence [i. e.  , section 90.404(2) (a)] is  not 

tenable. Section 921.141 (1) allows any evidence the court deems relevant to  

the nature of the crime and the character of the defendant, and includes matters 

relating t o  any of the agravating circunsstances which certainly includes section 

921.141 (5) (b) , Florida Statutes (1983) . In effect,  damnstrating the character 



of the defendant by his past capital felonies is as much of a feature i n  the 

penalty phase as proving the capital crime i n  the present offense a t  the trial. 

By contrast, section 90.4C4(2) (a) deals w i t h  similar fact  evidence a h i s s i b l e  

a t  trial to prove mt ive ,  opportunity, e t c  . , but precludes this evidence when 

it is used solely to  prove bad character. Yet under section 921.141 (1) , the 

s ta te  is  and can show circumstances of the crime to  prove bad character; the 

character of the appellant is what the advisory jury must  consider. 

Appellant specifiaally argues that the facts of the Mississippi 

rmrder focused on an aggravating factor (section 921.141 (5) (h) , Florida Statutes 

(1983), heinous, atrocious, o r  muel) but that this l a t t e r  factor is  not estab- 

lished in the present case. Therefore, the evidence in the Mississippi mder 

should have not been admitted. In support of this contention, appellant notes 

that the Mississippi stabbing m d e r  was carmilitted after the murder i n  the case 

at bar (R 1531, 1536) . But as this court noted i n  Elledge, supra, a subsequent 

murder and i t s  attendant facts  are admissible a t  the penalty phase i f  it i s  a 

"previous coriviction" pursuant to section 921.141 (5) (b) . - Id. a t  1001-1002. 

Appellant has not and cannot refute that the contested evidence did re la te  to 

the character of the defendant pursuant to section 921.141 (1) and was relevant 

pursuant to section 921.141 (5) (b) . 

Appellee submits that & issue argued on appeal was not argued 

below. Defense counsel below made a general objection to having the prosecutor 

i l l i c i t  any facts regarding the Nississippi murder conviction (R 1501). The 

only specific objection and argumnt was to  the pictures admitted of the 

Plississippimurder and their possible prejudicial effect (R 1509). The court 

subsequently disallowed the introduction of tm (2) out of the four (4) pictures 

(R 1563). This court should note that counsel below never argued any of the 

theories presented herein and as such the a r p n t s  presented on appeal have not 

been preserved for  review. - See, S t e i r b r s t  v.  State, 412 So. 2d 332 (Fla. 1982) . 



THE TRIAL C O W  WAS CORRECT TiV IENYING 
APPELLmT' S MITION TO s m  m m  AS 
A POSSIBLE PI.wLrY. 

Appellant essentially argues that since death is a unique penalty 

its status should be elevated to  an element of the offense as opposed to being 

a penalty or sentence. Appellant acknawledges that h i s  argment has been re- 

jected i n  Sireci v. State, 399 So. 2d 964, 970-971 (Fla. 1981) . This court, 

i n  holding tha t  the aggravating circumstances were not a part of the allegation 

for a capital crime, rejected the d o g y  t o  differing degrees of burglary and 

robbery. The defendant would not be on notice of which degree of burglary or 

robbery was charged unless the necessary allegations in the information were 

present. 5 

The legislature has decreed that the death penalty is a possible 

• sentence for  f i r s t  degree mrder , pursuant to section 775.082 (1) , Florida 

Statutes (1983). The penalty provisions of this  statute regarding death are 

only limited by section 921.141, Florida Statutes (1983) . Appellant, i n  sup- 

port of h is  argunent, rnakes a distinction between substantive and procedural 

1 .  Appellee submits that th is  distinction a d d r a t e s  the problem. A m r e  

appropriate distinction would be to make a d i c h o t q  between a charging docu- 

ment ( i  . e . , an offense) and a sentence. As an w l e ,  an informtion oharging 

robbery with no other elexrents under section 812.13 (c) , Florida Statutes (1983), 

would be punishable by a maximum term of imprisonment of f if teen (15) years. A 

charging d o c e n t  which alleged that a robbery occurred with a weapon or f ire-  

5 ~ s  argument was also rejected i n  Kitchcock v. State, 413 So. 2d 741, 746 
(Fla. 1982), where it was held tha t  notification is provided by the e n m a t e d ,  
aggravating factors in section 921.141 (5) , Florida Statutes (1975) and need not 

a be alleged in the indictment. 



arm pursuant t o  sections 812.13 (2) (a) and (b) , Florida Statutes (1983) , would 

be punishable up to a l i f e  tern inpriso-nt. I f  the indictment alleged that 

a murder occurred during the perpetration of the robbery pursuant to  section 

782.04(1) (a) , Florida Statutes (1983) , then the possible penalties would be 

either twenty-five (25) years imprisonment with no opportmity for parole or 

death. But the l a t t e r  allegation i n  the indictxent would certainly put the 

defendant on notice that death would be a:possible sentence for p u n i s k n t  

because the allegation contains the necessary e l m t  that a person was kil led 

during the perpetration of the robbery. 

In Rusaw v. State, 451 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1984)) this  court held that 

sexual battery c d t t e d  against a child eleven (11) years of age or  younger 

would s t i l l  be a capital offense even th~ugh the death penalty was no longer 

a possible penalty, and that the defendant w d d  s t i l l  have to receive a sen- 

tence of twenty-five (25) years inpriscmmnt without parole. h i s  court ex- 

@ plained: 

It is well set t led .that the legislature 
has the pawer to  define c r b  &d to se t  
punishments . 

(emphasis supplied) . - Id. a t  470. Although the death penalty was eliminated 

as a possible sentence for this  particular offense, that elimination did not 

change the status of the offense as being a capital offense. The t r i a l  wurt 

i n  m a w ,  was s t i l l  compelled to treat the offense as a capitol offense. 

Likewise, i n  the case a t  bar, the t r i a l  wur t  was duty bound to  comply with 

the sentencing provisions of section 775.082 (1) . The death penalty could not 

be eliminated as a possible p u n i s b t  rnerely because the factors that account 

for the sentence are not alleged i n  the indictment. 

As a practical p robla ,  i£ the aggraxating factors were alleged in 

the indictmnt, the s ta te  would be forced to prove these factors a t  trial. W 

a t  the very leas t ,  the indictment would be read to  the jury. Therefore, the 



jury would hear i l legal  and i n f l m t o r y  evidence which would normally n e w  

b e a d m i s s a b l e a t a t r i a l .  

Appellant relies upon L j n d s e y  416 SO. 2d 471 (Fla. 4th DCA 

1982), where the Fourth Distr ict  held that an information was defective to  

charge f i r s t  degree burglary h e n  it did not allege the elemnts of assault 

even though it alleged that an assault occurred during the burglary. Appellee 

notes that  th is  court viewed that case i n  State v. Lindsey, 446 So. 2d 1074 

(Fla. 1984). ?his court reversed that decision and held that the information 

did properly charge f i r s t  degree burglary. ?his court noted that Lindsey' s 

r;c.cion for  a s ta temnt  of particulars as to h a t  comprised the assault did 

not receive a ruling by the trial court. Assuming arguendo, that  the punish- 

ment provision should be alleged in the indictment, appellant's analogy s t i l l  

f a i l s  under Lindsey v. State,  supra. Lmking a t  both Lindsey cases, it is 

a apparent that not alleging the e l m t s  of assault is not a fundamental de- 

fect .  A s  such, a defendant could mve for a statement of particulars.  But 

defense counsel be lm  in the present case (R 2517) never made any such mt ion  

for a " s t a t a n t  of particulars" so that he would be notified of the particular 

aggravating circumstances. Appellant beluw asked the indictmnt to be dismissed 

or  that death not be a possible penalty (R 2516-2517) . Appellee submits, even 

under appellant's theory, such a &astic measure should not have been put forth 

by appellant un t i l  a m t ion  for  a "statemant of particulars" had been f i l ed  

and ruled upon by the t r i a l  court. In the absence of such a mt ion ,  appellee 

s&mits that  the issue is not preserved for  review. 

A s  a f ina l  cament on th is  point, appellee notes that under sections 

947.16(3) (relating to  the t r i a l  court retaining jurisdiction for  e n m a t e d  

crimes) and 921.001, Florida Statutes (1983) , (the guideline statute) , there is 

a no requirement that the provisions of these statutes be alleged in an infor- 

mation or  indictment. For purposes of notification, the defendant is on notice 
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that he is subject to the statutory maximmi penalty for the offense charged 

i n  an indictment or an information. A defendant i s  not entitled to any notice 

of wSlether the state w i l l  proceed or how the state w i l l  proceed under the 

la t ter  two (2) statutes. By analogy, the appellant should likewise not need 

any notification except for the fact that death i s  a possible p u n i s b t  and 

that the state can produce evidence to support that penalty under section 

921.141 (5) . 



APPJ3J.ANT WAS PROPERLY SElTENm TO DEATH. 

A. ?HERE WAS SUBSTANTIAL, COM- 
PETANT EVIDENCE TO SbPPORT THE 
TRIAL C O W '  S FINDIKG THAT THE 
MURDER WAS COMMITSED FOR AVOID- 
ING OR PRE:VETTNG A LCWmJL AR- 
REST OR AFFEmNG AN ESCAPE. 

Appellant takes issue with the court' s finding that the murder 

was  c d t t e d  for avoiding or preventing a lawful arrest  o r  effecting an escape 

pursuant t o  section 921.141 (5) (e) , Florida Statutes (1983) . 'ke findings of 

the trial court cited specifically the testimony of Ray Ryan, t o  the effect 

that appellant told him, "anybody hears rny voice or  sees my face has got to  

die. " (R 809, 2720) . Based q o n  this  t e s t b n y  , the trial court could find 

this amavat inn circumstance. See. Herrim v. State, 446 So. 2d 1049, 1057 -- - 
(ma. 1984) , h e r e  testimony frm-A detective that the defendant told him he 

shot a store clerk during a robbery to  prevent that clerk from being a witness 

was sufficient to find this aggravating circmstance and Johnson v. State, 

442 So.2d 185, 188 (Fla. 1983), &re a co-defendant explained t-hat the defend- 

ant told h i m  that he kil led the clerk i n  a robbery because, "dead witnesses 

don' t talk" and this was held to be a proper finding under section 921.141 (5) (e) . 
But there was more evidence to  support the t r i a l  court ' s finding. 

Ray Ryan tes t i f ied huw appellant dismantled the gun used i n  the murder and dis- 

posed of it in a jmk yard (R 751-752, 810, 813). b b e r t  Taylor tes t i f ied that 

right a f te r  the murder the appellant told him he drove the cax away and l e f t  it 

a mile from h is  apartment and hacl h is  girlfriend, Stacy Sigler ,  pick him up 

(R 747). Stacy Sigler tes t i f ied that appellant took the victim's car to an 

a orange grove after  he c d t t e d  the m d e r ,  three (3) miles from his  brother's 

house and had her follow him and l e f t  the car abandoned a t  that orange grove 



(R 885) . Richard Miller, a .  k. a .  F b n t g e r y  , tes t i f ied that he was told by 

appellant that he (the appellant) drove the victim's car from the orange grove 

where the kil l ing took place and l e f t  it at another orange grove and had Stacy 

Sigler pick him up because he was,  "afraid that the cops or kids would find it 

out there. " (R 1267) . All this testinmy reinforces the court's finding that 

appellant c d t t e d  the murder to  avoid or prevent an arrest.  

Appellant argues that the testinmy of Ann Cole refutes the finding 

by the court. Notwithstanding that the t r i a l  court has the discretion to  find 

this  aggravating circumstance and not accord the weight to  Ann Cole's testimony 

that appellant desires, Ann Coles' testinmy taken in to ta l  context reinforces 

the court's finding. Although Ann Cole did tes t i fy  she lived across the s t reet  

f romhere  the mder occurred, she tes t i f ied that the orange grove was a very 

large one (R 620). Although Ann Cole did hear same arguing, she could not see 

anyone because the victim and appellant were far back i n  the grove. Additionally, 

these events occurred about 9 : 30 or  10 : 00 a t  night (R 621) . Ms.  Cole had tes ti- 

f ied that she had heard cannotions in the orange grove before, so she did not 

ca l l  the police (R 622) . Finally, Ann Cole tes t i f ied that her house was quite 

a distance back from the mad (R 623). ( I t  should be remnbered that she lived 

across the s t reet  from the orange grove, R 620). 

Appellant re l ies  upon, but should take no canfort from the case 

of Menendez v.  State, 368 So.2d 1278, 1282 (ma. 1979). In h e n d e z ,  the only 

evidence adduced by the s ta te  to establish th is  aggravating factor was  the fact 

that the defendant used a silencer on the f irem to corrmit the murder. In 

holding this factor was not established, this  court explained: 

. . . we do not know what events pro- 
ceeded the actual ki l l ing,  we only know 
that  a weapon was  brought to  the scene 
which, i f  used, would minimize detection. 
We cannot assure bknendez' motive; . . . 

- Id. a t  1282. In the case at bar, there is a q l e  evidence of what proceeded, as 



w e l l  as d-mt followed the nuder to support the court's finding. 

B . TJZXE WAS SUBSTANTIAL, CDf- 
P E m  EVIDENCE TO SUPPORT 'IHE 
TRIAL COURT'S FINDING WAT THE 

WAS C M m  I N  A COLD, 
cL4umATED, AND PREMEDITATED 
MANNER WIlHOUT ANY PRETENSE OF 
MDRCV, OR UGAL JUSTIFICATION. 

In Johnson v. State, 10 F.L.W. 123, 125-126 @la. Feb. 14, 1985)) 

where a defendant picked up a victim (a topless dancer) i n  his  car and the 

victim' s body was found near an unoccupied house and there was evidence of 

strangulation, this court found a proper basis to support a finding under 

section 921.141(5) ( i )  , Florida Statutes (1983) . ?he evidence, i n  the case at 

bar, to  support this  factor is as follows. Stacy Sigler tes t i f ied that while 

she was driving with appellant, he told her that he planned to find a hamsexual, 

rob him, and k i l l  him. (R 879-880). He then told her t o  drive to a bar and 

then wait fo r  him to  ca l l  her, which he subsequently did. Pursuant to  that 

ca l l ,  Stacy Sigler tes t i f ied that she picked up appellant a t  h is  brother's 

house (R 831). The time period between leaving appellant a~ the bar and picking 

him up at his  brother's house was th i r ty  (30) minutes to one (1) hour. When 

she f i r s t  saw appellant af ter  the murder, she saw him taking things out of the 

victim's car (R 882). She tes t i f ied appellant took the victim's car to  an 

orange grove three (3) miles away from his brother's house and she follcwed 

him i n  her car (R 885) . Richard f i l l e r ,  a .  k. a .  Wntgomery , corroborated the 

testinmny about the murder plan given by Stacy Sigler (R 1267). Aside fram 

the planning, the facts adducedat t r i a l  surrounding themurder i t se l f  q l y  

s q p o r t  the t r i a l  court ' s finding. The rredical examiner tes t i f ied that there 

were d t i p l e  gunshot wounds on the victim' s body; one i n  the head and one in 

the chest (R 679). The shot i n  the chest entered from the back and was con- 

s is tent  with the nuzzel of the gun being held very close (R 680). %ere was a 



gunshot w m d  to the right side of the head as well, and either gunshot wund 

e by i t se l f  would have been sufficient to  k i l l  the victim (R 682, 686) . Again, 

Richard Miller, a.k. a .  Wntgon-ery, corroborated the t e s t k n y  . Pgpellant told 

th is  witness that he had the victim back by h i s  (the victim's) car and asked 

for  the victim's gold. The victim said he did not have it. m e  victim t r ied 

to  run, but appellant told the i m t e  that he shot the victim i n  -the heart and 

as the victim was running, also shot him i n  the head (R 1267-1268) . - See, 

0' Callaghan v. State, 429 So. 2d 691, 696-697 (Fla. 1983) , dlere the defendants 

beat a victim mconscious i n  a bar, placed him i n  a van, drove out to  a dirt 

road where they threw the victim d m ,  shot the victim twice, placed the body 

i n  the bushes, threw the nuder weapon in the canal, and remved the victim's 

car and where this  court held that this type of execution ki l l ing wu ld  s q -  

port a finding pursuant t o  section 921.141(5) ( i ) .  Appellee submits that the 

facts not only show a hi& degree of planning, but also show an exrc~tion-style 

muder. -- See also, Squires v. State, 457 So. 2d 208, 212 (Fla. 1984) , where a 

service station was robbed, the attendant kidnapped, and that attendant was 

found dead in a wooded area with f ive (5) shots a t  close range and these facts 

supported a finding pursuant to section 921.141(5) ( i )  . 
The trial court found tsm (2) other aggravating circumstances in 

addition to  the two (2) contested factors herein. ?he t r i a l  court found no 

mitigating circumtances (R 2720-2721) . Lhder such circunstances , the death 

penalty is presuned correct and even i f  this  court found one (1) or  both of 

the aggravating circunstances improper, the penalty should s t i l l  be affirmed, 

without remand. 



THE mX,RIM CAPITAL, S m T C I N G  STAW 
IS coNsTImIoNAL. 

Appellant's last argaxznt deals with the nunber of general issues 

attacking the capital sentencing statute . Appellant candidly acknawledges that  

these issues have been rejected. Appellee w i l l  address s m  of these issues 

specifically i n  the order that they appear in appellant's brief .  

Appellant contends that the capital sentencing statute f a i l s  to  

provide any standard of proof for detemining that aggravating circumstances 

"outweigh the mitigating factors" md that the amavat ing circumstances have 

been applied in a vague and inconsistent mariner. Additionally, appellant con- 

tends the capital sentencing process fails to provide for individual sentencing 

determinations through the application of presmp tim , mitigating evidence, 

a and other factors. These contentions have previously been rejected in 

m e ,  438 So. 2d 380 (Fla. 1983) and State v.  Dixon, 283 So. 2d 

1 (Fla. 1973), as well as other cases. 

krrther on, appellant argues that the statute is unconstitutional 

i n  that it does not require an advisory opinion by a unanimous or  by a substantial 

majority of the jury. Although this  point has no mrit on a legal basis, it 

i s  total ly inapplicable i n  the case at bar, inasmuch as it was a u n a e u s  

recommdation for  the death penalty (R 1648). 

Appellant addresses issues pursuant to Witherspoon v. I l l inois ,  391 

U. S . 510 (1968) . No specific issues i n  the t r i a l  were l i t igated on appeal and 

as such, even if there were any such issues they have not been preserved for  

appeal. 

Appellant also m t i o n s  that the addition of section 921.141 (5) ( i )  , 

a (cold and calculated) renders the statute unconstitutional. lhis a r ~ n t  has 



been rejected in  Harris v. State, 438 So. 2d 787 (Fla. 1983) , and Jent v. State, 

408So.2d1024(Fla.1981). 

Tne issues raised in  this general point have been resolved against 

appellant in the following cases as well : Alfard v. State, 307 So. 26 433 (Fla. 

1975); Alvord v. State, 322 So.2d 533 (Fla. 1975); Boolser v. State, -- 397 So.2d 

910 (Fla. 1981); Lewis v. State, 398 So.2d 432 (Fla. 1981); Tafero v. State, 

403 So. 2d 355 (Fla. 1981) ; Ferguson v. State, 417 So. 2d 639 (Fla. 1981) ; Peavy 

v. State, 442 So. 2d 200 (Fla. 1983) ; Clark v. State, 443 So. 2d 973 (Fla. 1983) ; 

Spjnkellink v. Wairrwri&t, 578 F. 2d 582 5th C i r .  (1978) ; Proffitt  v. Florida, 

428 U.S. 279 (1976); and Barclay v. Florida, U.S. , 103 S.Ct. 3418 

(1983). Appellee urges that the las t  challenges under this point be rejected 

in  light of the long line of cases upholding the constitutionality of section 

921.141, Florida Statutes (1983) . 



CONCLUSION 

Based on the argurents and authorities presented herein, appellee 

respectfully prays this honorable court affirm the  j u d p m t  and sentence of 

the t r i a l  court in all respects. 
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